
 

AGENDA 
Meeting of the Board of Education 

To be held at The Administration Center 
2123 S. Arlington Heights Road, Arlington Heights, IL 60005 

Monday, May 8, 2017 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – Barbara Somogyi, President 

2.0 ROLL CALL – Sunil Bhave, Secretary 

3.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4.0 COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

5.0 STUDENT CELEBRATIONS 
5.01 Community Connections -  Presentation by John Jay, Juliette Low and Forest View 

6.0 CONSENT AGENDA  

6.01 Approval of Minutes-Prior Meetings 
a. Regular Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2017  
b.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2017  
c. Regular Meeting Minutes of April 25, 2017  
d. Closed Meeting Minutes  of April 25, 2017 

6.02  Disbursements Resolution 
a. May 8, 2017 Disbursement Listing for 2016-17 

6.03  Acceptance of Financial Reports  
a. Detail Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2017 
b. Combined Revenue and Expense Report as of March 31, 2017 
c. Investment Report as of March 31, 2017 
d. Activity Fund Statements as of March 31, 2017 

6.04 Acceptance of Recommendations: Human Resources Report  
a. Administrator Contracts 
b. Administrator Retirement 
c. Certified Contracts 
d. Certified Temporary Contract 
e. Certified Resignations  
f. ESP Temporary Contract 
g. ESP Contract 
h. ESP Resignation 
i. ESP Retirement 
j. CAMEO Contract  

6.05 Approval to Destroy 18 Month Old or Older Closed Session Recordings  
 

7.0 REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
8.0 SPECIAL INTEREST TOPICS  

8.01 FOIA Requests 
  



 

9.0 ACTION ITEMS 
9.01  Approval of the 2018/19 Traditional School Calendar and Holidays  

a. Traditional School Calendar 
b. 2018/19 School Holidays 

          9.02   Grove Junior High School Request To Accept Grant Award, Illinois Reading  
                    Council  
          9.03   Grove Junior High School Request To Accept Grant Award, Ecolab  
                    Foundation Elk Grove Chapter  
          9.04   Forest View Request To Accept Donation Award, PTO  
          9.05   Ridge Family Center For Learning Request To Accept Grant Award, Ecolab  

         Foundation Elk Grove Village Chapter 
 

10.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS 
10.01  NSSEO Budget Adoption: 2017/18 School Year  
10.02  Contracts for $1,000 in Revenue (School Portraits)  
10.03 Sealcoat and Re-Striping Award 
10.04 Locker Replacement for Holmes Jr High 
10.05 Parking Lot Resurfacing at Brentwood and Grove,  
 

11.0 NEW/CONTINUING BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
11.01 2016-17 Board Calendar Agenda 
11.02 DRAFT 2017-18 Board Committee Assignments 
11.03  Translations for Graduation Speeches 

 
12.0 REPORTS OF THE SUPERINTENDENT’S TEAM  

12.01 Strategic Planning Focus 2017-18 
 

13.0 CLOSED SESSION - for discussion of “the appointment, employment, compensation, 
discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body”  -5ILCS 
120/2 (c) (1) of the Open Meetings Act.   

 
14.0 RECONVENE  
 
15.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 

Individuals who require special accommodations because of a  
disability should contact the Educational Services Department at 847.593.4335. 

The next regular meeting of the Board of Education will be held on  
May 22, 2017 at the District 59 Administration Center 

2123 S. Arlington Heights Rd.,  Arlington Heights, IL 60005 
www.CCSD59.org http://www.ccsd59.org 

School District 59-Preparing Students to be Successful for Life 
 
 

http://www.ccsd59.org/
http://www.ccsd59.org/




 

Board Meeting – 05/08/2017 
Item No. 2.0 

  
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
Roll Call:  
 Meeting of Monday, May 8, 2017 
 

 





 
 

 Board Meeting – 05/08/17 
Item No. 6.0 

Page 1 
 

  
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION: CONSENT AGENDA 
Background 
A consent agenda consists of items that are, by general agreement, acceptable to all              
Board Members without discussion and can be approved by a single vote. The Consent              
Agenda shall include items of a routine nature on which the Board of Education has               
received sufficient background information to take action on the items presented for            
approval. Typically, the following routine items are included as part of a Consent Agenda:              
1) minutes; 2) bills for payment; 3) periodic reports; 4) personnel; and 5) resolutions that               
are adopted annually. 
If any member of the Board of Education requests removal of any item from the Consent                
Agenda or a member of the public requests to speak on a Consent Agenda Item, then that                 
item shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and become the first item under the               
Action Agenda Item Section of the agenda. If an item is so removed from the Consent                
Agenda and added to the Action Agenda, then with respect to those items only, the Board                
of Education may take such action as it deems appropriate including the right to vote               
thereon. 
Recommendation 
Approval of the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Resolution  
Motion was made by ___________________, seconded by ____________________ to 
adopt the following resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated              
School District 59 Board of Education approve the Consent Agenda as           
presented/amended:6.01 Approval of Minutes-Prior Meetings 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2017  
b.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2017  
c. Regular Meeting Minutes of April 25, 2017  
d. Closed Meeting Minutes  of April 25, 2017 

6.02  Disbursements Resolution 
a. May 8, 2017 Disbursement Listing for 2016-17 

6.03  Acceptance of Financial Reports       Reports 
a. Detail Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2017 
b. Combined Revenue and Expense Report as of March 31, 2017 
c. Investment Report as of March 31, 2017 
d. Activity Fund Statements as of March 31, 2017 

6.04 Acceptance of Recommendations: Human Resources Report  
a. Administrator Contracts 
b. Administrator Retirement 
c. Certified Contracts 



 
 

 Board Meeting – 05/08/17 
Item No. 6.0 

Page 2 
 

d. Certified Temporary Contract 
e. Certified Resignations  
f. ESP Temporary Contract 
g. ESP Contract 
h. ESP Resignation 
i. ESP Retirement 
j. CAMEO Contract  

 



 
Board Meeting – 05/08/17 

Item No. 6.01 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
RESOLUTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES - PRIOR MEETINGS 
Background 
Minutes become the official and legal record of the acts and deliberations of the Board               
of Education. They reach this status on approval by the Board of Education completed              
during open session at a school board meeting. 
Recommendation 
Minutes should be approved as presented or amended by Board action. 
Resolution 
Motion made by ___________________________, seconded by 
___________________________ to adopt the following resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017 the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve the minutes of the            
following meetings (as presented/amended) by Board action: 
5.01 Approval of Minutes-Prior Meetings 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2017  
b.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 10, 2017  
c. Regular Meeting Minutes of April 25, 2017  
d. Closed Meeting Minutes  of April 25, 2017 

 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 1 
 

Official Minutes of the Monday, April 10, 2017 
Board of Education Meeting 
 

Call to Order The Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59          
in County of Cook, State of Illinois, held a meeting in accordance with             
provisions of the Open Meetings Act, according to Illinois law, at the            
District 59 Administration Center, 2123 South Arlington Heights Road,         
Arlington Heights, Illinois on Monday, April 10, 2017. The meeting was           
called to order at 7:00PM.  

  
Roll Call Members Present: President- Barbara Somogyi, Vice-President -       

Janice Krinsky, Karen Osmanski - Secretary - Members: Sunil Bhave,          
Tim Burns, Sharon Roberts and Mardell Schumacher 
Members Absent: none 

Others Superintendent, Dr. Arthur Fessler; Associate Superintendent, Tom       
Luedloff; Assistant Superintendent for Business Services, Vickie       
Nissen; Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, Kelley       
Zerfahs; Assistant Superintendent for Educational Services, Karen       
Starr; Assistant Superintendent for Instruction, Maureen McAbee;       
Executive Director of Facilities and Operations, Tony Rossi; Executive         
Director of Student Growth and Accountability, Dr. Josh Carpenter; and          
Recording Secretary, Kathie Lange. 
Also Present David Pohlmeier, Director of Communications and      
Design; Janet Russo, Business Services; Janet Fisher,       
Purchasing/School Nutrition Coordinator; Ross Vittore, Director of       
Innovative Learning; Mrs. Laura Sandoval, Salt Creek Principal: Margo         
Pinns, Teacher; Laura Bald, Salt Creek Teacher; Alicia Leiber, Salt          
Creek Teacher; Emily Williams, Salt Creek Teacher; Kaitlin Parrett, Salt          
Creek Teacher; Larry Ganan, Asst. Principal Salt Creek; Emily         
Woemmel, Asst. Principal, Admiral Byrd School; Mary Ellen Esser,         
Principal Admiral Byrd School; Kim Shaffer, Grove Jr. High Assistant          
Principal  
Salt Creek students: 5th Grade: Maya Dobaj, Rudra Patel, Ariana          
Trausch, Jimena Angel and Javier Grimaldo. Kindergarten: Piper Trigg,         
Sailor Tidaback, Hanna Krzyzewski.   
Arlington Heights Community Members: 
Keith Piscitello, 907 W. Cypress; Dan Makowski, 1214 W. Cedar; Jaime           
Esler, 607 W. Haven Dr.; Joan Burke, 1634 S. Chesterfield Dr.;           
Johanna Urban, 1635 S. Surrey Ridge Dr.; Kristen Fiore, 1303 Kaspar           
Ave.; Mary Anne Hodit, 1523 S. Kaspar Ave.; Mr. & Mrs. Rhodes, 1710             
S. Ridge Dr.; Roger Czajkowski, 1519 S. Kennicott; Steve Miller, 119           
W. Emerson; Tracy Miller, 119 W. Emerson; Jay Sherman, 1003 W.           
Cedar Lane; Ann Larson, 1527 S. Highland; Dina Huskie, 1606 S.           
Surrey Ridge Dr.; Javier Grimaldo, 10 10th Ave.; Joann Krestel, 1723 S.            



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 2 
 

Ridge Dr.; Jon Bloss, 1310 S. Preston Ave.; Lucille McKenna, 1503 S.            
Kaspar Ave.; Mr. & Mrs. Agilkia, 1007 W. Haven; Mr. & Mrs. Schmidt,             
1534 S. Princeton; Rosann & Mike Murray, 1108 W. White Oak St.;            
Susan Dombroski, 1403 S. Kaspar Ave.; Laura Mantal, 1303 W. Cedar           
Lane; Carol Stube, 311 W. Haven Tr.; Fara Librizzi, 311 W. Victoria Ln.;             
Jay Cherwin, 1003 W. Cedar Lane; Joe Donlon, 1515 S. Princeton           
Ave.; Kate Connelly, 710 W. Victoria Ln.; Mary & Mike Vicars, 1715            
Ridge Dr.; Mr. & Mrs. Moser, 506 W Haven Dr. ; Mr. & Mrs. Seifert,               
1618 S. Harvard; Sarah Dubinski, 1543 N. Highland; Tom McDonnell,          
1307 W. Cedar Lane; Dave Divito, 1711 South Ridge Drive.  
Elk Grove Community Members: The Angel Family - 800 Spring Creek           
Ct.; The Govert Family - 574 Middlebury Lane; Kathy Stick - 700            
Wellington; Lori Madl - 60 Keswick; Michael & Jesse Trigg - 585            
Grosvener Ln.; Natalie & Anabel Sanchez - 600 Charing Cross Rd.;           
Richard Trausch (no address listed); Roi Tidaback (no address listed);          
Suresh Patel (no address listed). 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America 
was recited.  
 
Mrs. Somogyi, suggested changing the order of the agenda.   The Salt 
Creek Student Presentation was moved up in the agenda.  
 
Mr. Tom Luedloff introduced Mrs. Susan Savage.  Mrs. Savage was 
hired as principal at Robert Frost Elementary School for the 2017-18 
school year.   Mrs. Savage was welcomed by the Board of Education. 
 
SALT CREEK SCHOOL BUDDY PROGRAM 
 
Mrs. Laura Sandoval and Mr. Larry Ganan introduced Mrs. Laura Bald, 
5th grade teacher at Salt Creek Elementary School.   Mrs. Bald shared 
details about the Salt Creek Buddy Program. 
 
Fifth grade students partner with kindergarten buddies to share their 
love of reading. Fifth graders have created book talks and read alouds 
for favorite picture books, which kindergarteners can use to help them 
choose books.  Kindergarten students can also enjoy read alouds of 
popular children's books by using their tablets. 
 
The following students shared their experiences with the Board of 
Education:   
 
5th Grade: Maya Dobaj, Rudra Patel, Ariana Trausch, Jimena Angel 
and Javier Grimaldo.  Kindergarten: Piper Trigg, Sailor Tidaback, 
Hanna Krzyzewski. 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 3 
 

 
Board members thanked the students and Mrs. Bald for the enjoyable 
presentation and requested that links to the book talks and read aloud 
books be shared with the Board. 
 

AUDIENCE RECESS  
Listed below are Arlington Heights Community members that addressed         
the Board of Education on the topic of property values in the Juliette             
Low area of Arlington Heights and test scores at Juliette Low.  
 

● Mrs. Mary Vicars - 1715 Ridge Dr., Arlington Heights, IL. (A copy            
of the prepared statement was submitted to the superintendent         
and will be attached to the minutes of this meeting.) 

● Joan Burke - 1634 S. Chesterfield Dr., Arlington Heights, IL. (A           
copy of the prepared statement was submitted to the         
superintendent and will be attached to the minutes of this          
meeting.) 

● Dan Makowski - 1214 W. Cedar Lane, Arlington Heights, IL 
● John Bloss - 1310 S. Preston Ave., Arlington Heights, IL 
● Dave Divito - 1711 South Ridge Drive, Arlington Heights, IL 
● Gloria Schmidt - 1534 S. Princeton, Arlington Heights, IL 
● Fara Librizzi  - 311 W. Victoria Lane, Arlington Heights, IL 
● Jay Sherman - 1003 W. Cedar Lane, Arlington Heights, IL 
● Tom McDonnell  -  1307 W. Cedar Lane, Arlington Heights, IL 

 
The following Arlington Heights Community members shared details of         
their experience as parents of current Juliette Low students: 

● Joanne Krestel - 1723 S. Ridge Dr., Arlington Heights, IL 
● Rosann Murray - 1108 W. White Oak St., Arlington Heights, IL 
● Laura Mantel - 1303 W. Cedar Lane Arlington Heights 
● Jaime Esler - 607 W. Haven Dr., Arlington Heights, IL  

 
Board members thanked the community members for sharing their         
thoughts and concerns. 
 
Dr. Fessler thanked the community members for their comments. He          
indicated that the District will work on strategies to address the           
concerns that were brought up during Audience Recess.  
 
Mrs. Somogyi stated that Ms. Janice Krinsky had requested to share           
information on test scores during this portion of the meeting. Ms.           
Krinsky shared a slide presentation on test scores.   (Attached) 
 
Dr. Burns indicated that he would be willing to contact the Mayor Hayes             
of Arlington Heights to discussion information that was shared by          
community members. 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 4 
 

 
Mrs. Somogyi thanked the community members who spoke. She asked          
those who would like their comments to be included in the minutes to             
forward their comments to the superintendent’s secretary, Mrs. Kathie         
Lange. Mrs. Somogyi indicated that anyone who would like a response           
to the concerns that were expressed this evening, should follow up           
directly with the superintendent.  
 
At 8:27 PM, Mrs. Schumacher stepped out of the meeting.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA  
 

MOTION by Dr. Burns, seconded by Mr. Bhave to adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 10th day of April, 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve the Consent          
Agenda as presented/amended: 
6.01 Approval of Minutes-Prior Meetings 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes from March 6, 2017  
b. Regular Minutes from Special Board Meeting on March 13, 2017  
c. Closed Meeting Minutes from Special Meeting on March 13, 2017  
d.   Regular Meeting from March 20, 2017 
e. Closed Meeting Minutes from March 20, 2017  

 
6.02 Disbursements Resolution 

a. April 10, 2017 Disbursement Listing for FY 2016-17 
 

6.03 Acceptance of Financial Reports   Reports 
a. Detail Balance Sheet as of February 28, 2017 
b. Combined Revenue and Expense Report as of February 28, 2017 
c. Investment Report as of February 28, 2017 
d. Activity Fund Statements as of February 28, 2017 

 
6.04 Acceptance of Recommendations: Human Resources Report  

a. Certified Contracts 
b. Certified Temporary Contract 
c. Certified Retirement 
d. Certified Resignation 
e. ESP Contract  
f. ESP Temporary Contract 
g. CAMEO Retirements 

 
6.05 Approval to Destroy 18 Month Old or Older Closed Session Recordings 

 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 5 
 

Roll Call 

Aye 6 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, and 
Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 1 Schumacher 

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 6-0-1-0 
 

REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Krinsky shared that the NSSEO budget has been finalized and will 
be shared with the District 59 Board in the very near future. 
 
Mrs. Roberts, Mrs. Osmanski and Mrs. Somogyi attended the District 
59’s Got Talent event sponsored by the District 59 Education 
Foundation.   It was very well attended and students who performed 
did an excellent job. 
 
Mrs. Osmanski attended the Celebration of Cultures sponsored by the 
Elk Grove Park District and the Character Count Coalition.  The event 
was well attended and included more than 20 exhibits, dance 
performances, musical entertainment, games and activities. 
 
Dr. Burns asked if cords and equipment for student devices were 
checked when devices were collected at the school prior to state 
testing.   Mr. Vittore shared that inspection of the cords is handled at 
the building level, but he was not certain if the cords were examined for 
damage when devices were collected for prior to state testing.  
 
Dr. Burns recently recently had an informal conversation with John 
Walz, Elk Grove Park District Commissioner.  Mr. Walz had indicated 
(unofficially) that there would be support from the Park District Board 
for a performing arts building on the Lively property.   Mrs. Somogyi 
indicated that the Board could have dialogue around this idea. 
 
At 8:32 PM, Mrs. Schumacher re-entered the meeting.  

 
Mrs. Schumacher shared that she is recovering from injuries she 
suffered in a fall several weeks ago.  
 
Mrs. Somogyi attended the 2017 National School Board Association 
Conference in Denver, Colorado March 24-27. (Report attached). 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 6 
 

  
SPECIAL INTEREST TOPIC  

 
FOIA REQUESTS 
Ms. Zerfahs shared that the district had received seven FOIA requests 
since the last board meeting.   All requests have been responded to. 
 
PROCLAMATION FOR VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION WEEK  
APRIL 17-21, 2017 

  
MOTION by Mrs. Osmanski, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS , Community Consolidated School District 59 has the               
good fortune of many dedicated community and parent volunteers                 
who regularly provide support and assistance to children and staff; 
WHEREAS , Volunteers give unselfishly of their time and talents to                   
assist children and staff in meeting the district’s mission;  
WHEREAS , National School Volunteer Week is a time to say “thank                     
you” to our volunteers who make outstanding contributions to our                   
school district; and 
WHEREAS , members of the Community Consolidated School District               
59 Board of Education desire to recognize those who have                   
contributed during a school year to help Community Consolidated                 
School District 59 Prepare Students to be Successful for Life; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT April 17-21 2017 is                   
hereby proclaimed as Public School Volunteer Appreciation Week               
within Community Consolidated School District 59 in recognition of                 
the contributions provided by volunteers working throughout the               
2016- 2017 school year for the benefit of our children and staff. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the President and Secretary of the                     
Board of Education will sign the proclamation attached hereto and a                     
certified copy of the proclamation will be sent to each school within                       
Community Consolidated School District 59. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 7 
 

Roll Call 

Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 
Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

RIDGE FAMILY CENTER FOR LEARNING INTER-SESSION 
PROGRAMMING  FEE PROPOSAL FY 18 

 
MOTION by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, the 2017/18 balanced calendar for the Ridge Family Center for 
Learning Elementary Program provides time during the school year for two 
inter-sessions: 1) September 25 - October 4, 2017 (8 days); and 2) April 2 - 
6, 2018 (5 days); 
WHEREAS, attendance at an inter-session is an addition to the school year 
calendar and families are required to pay a fee to participate in an 
inter-session; 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED , that the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education approve the following fee 
arrangements at the Ridge Family Center for Learning for the 2017/18 
school year: 

● September/October 2017 Inter-session  (8 days) $160  
● April  2018  Inter-session  (5 days)  $100  

Adopted this 10th day of April 2017, by the following roll call vote: 
Ms. Nissen confirmed that there has never been a request for a fee waiver              
for participation in the Ridge Intersession program. She indicated that there           
had been one request to set up a payment plan. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 8 
 

Roll Call 

Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 
Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
DISCUSSION 
ITEM 

 
RENEWAL FOR REFUSE/RECYCLING SERVICE 
 
The terms of the original agreement for refuse and recycling service 
were from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016. The contract was for a 
one-year term with an option for two additional one-year renewals 
upon School District 59’s satisfaction and acceptance of the vendor’s 
prior year’s performance and service.  
 
According to the bid specifications the refuse is picked up daily, 
Tuesday through Saturday, and the recycling is picked up once a 
week.  The vendor also provides 90-gallon recycling containers, a size 
that best meets the schools’ recycling needs. 
 
School year 2017-2018 represents the second and final one-year term 
renewal  and Republic Services has agreed to maintain the current 
rates.  The District Administration continues to be satisfied with the 
level of performance and service provided by the vendor and is 
therefore recommending the contract for refuse/recycling service be 
renewed with Republic Services from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 
2018. 

 
  
2018/19 TRADITIONAL SCHOOL CALENDAR AND HOLIDAYS 
DRAFT CALENDAR 
  
Members of the Board of Education are being presented with a           
recommendation for the 2018/2019 school calendar. This calendar is         
being submitted to the Superintendent as a recommendation for the          
2018/2019 school year.  
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 9 
 

Highlights of the 2018/2019 traditional calendar include:  
 

● an opening day for staff on Monday, August 13, 2018, and 
students on Wednesday, August 15, 2018; 

 
● teacher Institute Day on Tuesday, November 6, 2018; 
 
● winter and spring vacation dates are similar to that of Township 

High School District 214; 
 
● an ending date for students for the 2018/2019 school year will be 

Thursday, June 6 2019, which includes five (5) emergency days; 
 
● the calendar is based upon 178 student attendance days; and 
 
● 184 staff work days with a total of 198 calendar days. 

 
HOLIDAYS FOR 2018/2019 FISCAL YEAR  
 
Each year the Board of Education is asked to adopt a resolution            
establishing official holidays for the next fiscal year. The adopted          
holiday schedule serves as a guide for implementing negotiated         
contracts with employee groups and establishing holidays for        
twelve-month administrative and non-administrative and non-negotiated      
employees. 
 
Members will be asked to designate President’s Day for Lincoln’s          
Birthday holiday (Public Hearing) and November 21, 2018 for Veteran’s          
Day holiday (Public Hearing).  
 

 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 10 
 

Mr. Bhave asked for clarification on whether a Public Hearing would be 
held prior to the approval of the holidays.  Ms. Zerfahs and Dr. Fessler 
indicated they would investigate and get back to the Board of 
Education.  
 
BOARD REORGANIZATION 
  
The organization meeting is an annual event for every board of 
education.  At the Re-organization Meeting the Board will: 

● Determine the of length of office for president, vice 
president and secretary of the Board 

● Establish a stipend for the Board of Education secretary 
● Elected a president, vice president and secretary 
● Reaffirm the adoption of the District 59 Board Policy Manual 
● Set the time and date for the regular Board of Education 

meetings for the next year 
Mrs. Somogyi expressed interest in running for the office of president. 
 
Ms. Krinsky expressed interest in running for the office of vice 
president. 
 
Mrs. Osmanski expressed interest in running as secretary,  but added 
that she would step down and support any Board member who like to 
serve as secretary next year. 
 
Mrs. Schumacher expressed interest in running for the office of vice 
president. 
 
Dr. Burns nominated Mr. Bhave as secretary of the Board.  Mrs. 
Somogyi explained that nominations and election of officers would 
occur at the April 25, 2017 meeting. 
 
PRESS POLICY UPDATE #94 
Background 
 
The IASB Policy Reference Manual provides a system for regular updating of 
policies to ensure legal compliance and provides cross-referencing of related 
policies and the legal references. Every policy is reviewed at least once every 
five years or as a result of state or federal, Illinois School Code, or Illinois 
School Board of Education regulation or rule changes. The administration also 
makes recommendations for policy revisions as needed. Additionally, the 
Board is required by School Code to review select policies either annually or 
biennially.  

 

The Board of Education reviewed policy changes recommended in the 
IASB Press Update #94 at the April 10, 2017 Board of Education 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 11 
 

meeting. Suggested changes were noted and will be made prior to the 
Board taking action on the following policies: 

2:100  Board Member Conflict of Interest 
3:70    Succession of Authority 
4:15     Identity Protection  
5:120   Employee Ethics; and Conduct; and Conflict of Interest - 
5:230   Maintaining Student Discipline  
5:285   Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus and Commercial 

Vehicle Drivers -  
5:300   Schedules and Employment Year  
6:70     Teaching About Religions  
7:100   Health, Eye, and Dental Examinations; Immunizations, and 

Exclusion of Students  

5 Year Review  
4:180  Pandemic Paredness  
5:80    Court Duty  
5:140  Solicitations By or From Staff 
5:210  Resignations  
5:320  Evaluations  

 
AWARD OF BIDS FOR RENOVATIONS AND ADDITION AT 
DEVONSHIRE ELEMENTARY 
Background 

BASIC BID INFORMATION 
 

NUMBER OF BIDS RECEIVED:  35 
DATE OF BID OPENING: March 23, 2017 
 
Devonshire Elementary school has a less than adequate main office 
space. The current space is the smallest of all main office spaces in the 
District. The health/nurse’s office, while functional, does not serve the 
needs of the students in an effective and efficient way. Working with 
ARCON and Associates, a workable solution was developed that 
creates a new main office addition to the front of the school. This will 
provide an area that brings Devonshire’s office in line with the District’s 
other schools. By moving the office to the front of the building, it also 
creates a secure entrance for visitor screening. The interior area of the 
current main office will be renovated to create larger classroom spaces 
and Devonshire will gain an additional classroom from this renovation.  
 
At the October 24, 2016 BOE meeting, a resolution was approved to 
proceed with drawings and specifications to go out to bid for the 
aforementioned work.  
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 12 
 

New HVAC units, flooring, and glazing which were part of the approved 
district wide annual capital improvement projects are included in this 
total and will be completed in conjunction with this project.  
 
On March 23, 2017, thirty-five (35) bids were opened for 11 bid 
packages representing the various trades resulting in base bids that 
total $ 3,086,248. Work will commence at the end of this school year 
with substantial completion scheduled prior to the start of the 
2017-2018 school year.  
  
AWARD OF BIDS FOR INTERIOR RENOVATIONS AT FRIENDSHIP 
JUNIOR HIGH 
Background 

BASIC BID INFORMATION 
 

NUMBER OF BIDS RECEIVED: 35 
DATE OF BID OPENING:  March 23, 2017 
 
Friendship Junior High has a majority of classroom configurations which 
require students to pass through one room to gain access to another. 
The construction of the current classrooms also lacks insulation to 
prevent sound permeation between spaces. Working with ARCON and 
Associates, a plan to add hallways to create individual classroom 
entrances and rebuild classroom walls will eliminate these distractions.  
 
At the October 24, 2016 BOE meeting, a resolution was approved to 
proceed with drawings and specifications to go out to bid for the 
aforementioned work.  
 
On March 23, 2017, thirty-five (35) bids were opened for 11 bid 
packages representing the various trades resulting in base bids that 
total $655,568. Work will commence at the end of this school year with 
substantial completion scheduled prior to the start of the 2017-2018 
school year.  
  
AWARD OF FLOORING REPLACEMENT AT HOLMES JUNIOR 
HIGH 
Background 

BASIC BID INFORMATION 
 

NUMBER OF BIDS RECEIVED:  2 
DATE OF BID OPENING:  March 23, 2017 
 
Flooring replacements for designated spaces at Holmes were included 
in the 2017-2018 capital improvement projects resolution and approved 
at the February 27, 2017 Board of Education meeting.  



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 13 
 

 
A mandatory pre-bid meeting on March 9, 2017 was held on site to 
explain the scope of work.  Bids were received, opened, and reviewed 
on March 23, 2017.  A scope review was held with the lowest 
responsible bidder Johnson Floor Company, ARCON and Associates, 
and representatives of the District.  

 
Mr. Rossi thanked Dr. Burns and Mrs. Somogyi for their participation on 
the Facilities Planning and Advisory Committee.  
  
APPROVAL OF THREE-YEAR CONTRACT FOR ELECTRIC  
 
Background 
Our current contract for electric expires on May 31, 2017. A Request            
For Proposal (RFP) was sent out to seven providers on March 24,            
2017. Four providers and one broker representing eight providers         
responded with a quote on April 4, 2017. 
 
The RFP provided three term options (12, 24 and 36 months) for a             
fixed rate contract to provide the District with electric. The RFP           
included all costs, fees and discounts associated with the purchase of           
electric, but not the delivery costs. These delivery services charges          
are billed by ComEd and include: customer charges, standard         
metering charges, distribution facilities charges and IL electricity        
distribution charges.  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the electric           
quote provided by AEP Energy in the amount of $.0625200 for 36            
months.  
 
APPROVAL OF TWO-YEAR CONTRACT FOR NATURAL GAS  
 
Background 
The current contract for natural gas expires on June 30, 2017. A            
Request For Proposal (RFP) was sent out to five providers on March            
24, 2017. On April 4, 2017, the District received four responses.           
Three of the responses were from suppliers and one was from a            
natural gas broker representing three suppliers. 
 
To ensure that the District partners with the best supplier for our            
upcoming natural gas needs the RFP was divided into four options.           
The options addressed the length of the contract, (12 or 24 months),            
and natural gas storage options. One type of natural gas storage           
option is to have the District “own” the natural gas purchased but not             
used. This option allows for the District to bank the unused natural            
gas in anticipation of future natural gas price increases. The other           



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 14 
 

option is for the District to return, or sell back, the unused natural gas              
for a cost credit at a lower rate than purchased.  
 
There were some responses which were outside the District’s RFP.          
One response included a 36 month option, which was not in the            
District’s RFP. Another was to include the total cost of natural gas            
and basis costs in the event the District would to agree to a fixed              
cost/therm, which was not in the District’s RFP. 
 
Per the commodities market, many of the costs incurred for natural           
gas are based on natural gas pricing. This RFP included commodity           
cost comparisons as a part of the quote to compare the costs that are              
passed along to the consumer. National Gas Intelligence (NGI) and          
New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) comparisons were included        
in the RFP.  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the quote           
provided by Centerpoint for Option 2 at $0.001 for NGI Index and            
$0.0029 for Basis to NYMEX for 24 months with the District owning            
the natural gas storage. Since Centerpoint is our current provider, the           
District would not need to incur any additional expenses for changing           
providers or be forced to return for a credit our current natural gas             
inventory of 179,000 therms. 
 
Mrs. Schumacher asked Ms. Nissen for the cost of gas last year. Ms.             
Nissen did not have the information immediately available, but will          
share it with the Board in the weekly update. 

 
NEW/CONTINUING BUSINESS 

The Board of Education selected September 12, 2017 at 6:00PM for a 
Special Board of Education meeting for the purpose of a Board Self 
Evaluation. Mrs. Barbara Toney, IASB Field Service Director, will 
facilitate. 

 
REPORTS OF THE SUPERINTENDENT’S TEAM 

Dr. Fessler congratulated Mrs. Roberts, Mrs. Osmanski, Ms. Krinsky 
and Mrs. Schumacher on being re-elected to the Board of Education.  

 
Dr. Fessler shared that he attended the NCERT Conference. A report 
had been shared with Board members in the Board Weekly Update. 
 

  
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 15 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
MOTION at 9:40 PM  by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Ms. Krinsky to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 10th day of April 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education recess in a closed 
meeting for discussion of “the appointment, employment, 
compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific 
employees of the public body”, “ “the placement of individual students in 
special education programs and other matters relating to individual 
student” -5ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) (10) of the Open Meetings Act.   

 
Roll Call 
 

Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 
Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

RECONVENE 
MOTION at 10:40 PM by Ms. Krinsky, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 10th day of April 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is 
reconvened.  

 
Roll Call 
 

Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 
Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 16 
 

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
MOTION at 10:41 PM by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt 

the following resolution: 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 10th day of April, 2017, the 
Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting 
is adjourned. 

 
Roll Call 
 

Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 
Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

_______________________________ 
 Barbara Somogyi, President  

 
ATTEST 
 
_______________________________ 
        Sunil Bhave, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 17 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Public Comments from community members that were forwarded to the 
superintendent: 
 
Mary Vicars  -  1715 South Ridge Drive, Arlington Heights 
 
“My name is Mary Cosenza Vicars.  I live at 1715 South Ridge Drive, Arlington Heights, 
in the Juliette Low neighborhood.  I am a retired teacher, having taught high school 
Social Studies and ESL for 40 years.  I taught all levels, all ages, including adults. I 
have my ESL Endorsement.  Currently I work part time and that gets me into 
elementary and high school districts in the Chicagoland area.  I have seen both 
extremes—I have seen some of the top schools in the state/country and students 
having to go through metal detectors to get into or out of their school. 
Two of our three children attended Low and Holmes. While my children attended 
District 59 schools, I was very involved in school and district committees.  I was on the 
Boundary Committee back in 1993.  It was in the 1980s and 1990s that the district 
decided to change the boundaries of Low to include the area 2 ½ miles away in Mount 
Prospect.  
 
Our third child Jamie only attended Low from kindergarten through second grade; in 3rd 
grade she started at Wayside.   I am a public-school teacher and when she started 
elementary school, our intention was that she would complete her education in District 
59 as her brother and sister had done.  
 
After speaking to Dr. Fessler, taking a tour of Juliette Low, corresponding with board 
members, speaking with people from the other 59 schools and my neighbors, and 
doing research, there are several issues that I would like to address. 
First, Juliette Low has a negative image.  Look at this sign, a few blocks north of the 
school.  Comparable homes in District 59 are worth between 10-15% less than a 
comparable home in District 25.  When scores are low, property values decline. 
The District needs to be proactive and promote their schools; it is not the job of real 
estate agents.  Agents have told me when a client asks about schools, they give them 
websites to look at, and if they want to look further, they tell them to call the school. 
Many agents won’t give clients a ranking because if the client buys a home and things 
don’t work out, the agent doesn’t want problems.  
 
It is job of the District to get inaccurate information off websites.  For example, 
according to the Zillow website (which is outdated and using 2014 scores), it currently 
says “Mount Prospect District 57 is also nearby and rates better than Community 
Consolidated School District 59.  Mount Prospect District 57 ‘s rating is 10 while 
Community Consolidated District 59 is a 6.”  The data that is being used is outdated.  I 
hope the District’s overall rating has improved, but in any event, the District should 
make sure that Zillow is using the most current information, not from three years ago.  I 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 18 
 

think the District needs to do more to get good publicity about Juliette Low in the local 
papers and Tribune.  When I was on the PTO Board—for Publicity, I was able to get 
press releases in the papers.   I know the District can do the same thing. 
Now I would like to address the issue of test scores.  Low has gone from a 5 out of 10 
rating to a 7 recently.  Holmes has gone from a 5 to 6.  Still not good.  No one is 
happier than me that there is progression.  Many friends’ children have told me that 
they wouldn’t even consider this neighborhood.  “It’s all about the scores,” they say. 
“We want diversity, but with good scores.”  
 
As an educator, I know that scores and other numbers don’t tell a person everything. 
That is true, but they do tell a lot.  Chances are that if your school is a 10, your children 
have the potential to get an excellent education.  If you school is 7 or less, maybe, 
maybe not.  When you look at the demographics, you can infer how the District’s 
resources and monies will be spent.  
 
Next, I decided to do research on the 59 schools so that I could compare them.  I used 
a site called schooldigger.com which uses National Center for Education Statistics, US 
Department of Education, US Census Bureau, and IL State Board of Education.  What 
I found was very interesting.  There are three district 59 elementary schools that doing 
much better than Low and other 59 schools.  These schools are Forest View, 
Devonshire, and Brentwood.  Why are these District 59 schools doing so better in 
terms of the average score on the 2016 PARCC exam, the school’s ranking out of the 
2,078 schools in Illinois and the percentage of schools in the state that are doing better 
or worse than the school?  It’s a question that needs to be asked and answered. 
Next, I looked further to see if it was possible for the 59 schools to do better.  Using this 
same site, I wanted to compare apples to apples so I found schools in other districts 
with similar demographics as the 59 schools.  I looked at SCC54 Enders-Salk School 
in Schaumburg, Lakeview School in Hoffman Estates, Palatine District 15 Central Road 
Elementary School in Rolling Meadows, River Trails 26 Euclid School in Mount 
Prospect, and Des Plaines District 62 South Elementary School.  Again, I looked at the 
2016 average PARCC score, school ranking, percentage of schools in Illinois that are 
better or worse than the school.  I found that all of these schools are doing better than 
some of the 59 schools.  I have other schools that I have looked at, but I think you get 
the point.  If these schools with similar demographics are doing better than some of the 
59 schools, why is this the case?  I have tried to figure this out and one figure that 
jumps out at me is the lower teacher-student ratio that these schools have compared to 
district 59.  Maybe we need to hire more good teachers. Has District 59 been in contact 
with these other districts to find out why they currently have better test scores than we 
have? 
 
I have also been told that District 59 won’t teach to the test.  Students take the PARCC 
exam in English in 3rd grade.  We need to prepare all students for this.  You can use all 
the good teaching practices and still prepare students for standardized exams.  When I 
was teaching, I was expected to do both.  These tests are here because people want 
an objective way to compare all schools.  And while the ratings might vary, you still get 
a pretty good idea how the school is doing. 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 19 
 

 
I am asking Dr. Fessler and the Board to reevaluate some of their practices and 
policies.  Everything should be on the table.  Maybe it’s time to close Ridge Family 
Center, the all year-round school so we don’t spend money to bus children from all 
over the district to attend that school. Maybe we need to redraw the boundaries.  The 
last time we did this was about 25 years ago.  And speaking of boundaries, there is an 
unincorporated area in Mt Prospect near and Linneman that is now been incorporated 
into Mt. Prospect.  Where do/will those children go to school?  Should we scale down 
the new Administration building?  Is the district in sound financial standing?  Can we 
spend more money on the education for all our students?  I know I am asking you to 
make hard decisions, but it is the right thing to do. 
 
For the 30 years that I have lived here, I have always wanted to see good teaching, 
good scores, and a good education for all students.  If that happens, our home values 
will rise because people will want to move into the neighborhood. 
As citizens, we need to do more than just vote; we must be engaged citizens. If we 
remain quiet, and complacent, nothing changes.  I wished that I had been more vocal 
years ago; maybe I would not be speaking today.  
I would like to thank Dr. Fessler and the Board for allowing me to speak tonight.  I think 
the 59 Board is lucky to have so many people concerned about the education of all our 
students.  To my neighbors, thank you for supporting my efforts. I feel lucky to have 
been able to live among you.  You are the reason I am still here.” 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/10/2017 
Item – 6.01(a)  

Page 20 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Facts about School 
Ratings 



School Ratings 
● Data Supplied by the nonprofit GreatSchools 

● Based on historical standardized test data 



How Ratings are Calculated 
● In most states it simply reflects the average test scores for 

that school. All the schools having the same grade levels 
are ranked and then they are collapsed into bands 
depending upon where that school falls in the ranking. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
www.greatschools.org/gk/ratings/ 



In Illinois 
● Depending upon the Real Estate Company, data for the 

state’s elementary schools is variously taken from: 

● 2012 ISAT test results 

● 2014 ISAT test results 

● 2012 - 2014 ISAT test results combined 
 
 
 
 
ISAT – Illinois Standards Achievement Test, retired in 2014 



Data Each Company Uses 
 

Company ISAT Data 

Zillow 2014 
Trulia 2012 
Realtor.com and Redfin 2012, 2013, and 2014 



Scores by Company 
 

School Zillow Trulia Realtor.com and 
Redfin 

Juliette Low 5 6 7 

John Jay 5 4 6 

Forest View 9 8 8 

Westgate 10 9 10 



Test Scores are Tied to Poverty 
● As poverty rates increase, overall scores decrease. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Daily Herald Special Report: Link between poverty, test scores continues, October 31, 2016 
www.dailyherald.com/article/20161031/news/161039759/ 



 
 
● Replaces ISAT 

PARCC 
 

● The PARCC test is aligned to what students are learning in 
the classroom and measures real-world skills, such as 
problem solving and critical thinking. It is only meant to be 
used as one measure of a student's achievement. 

● Administered in 2015 and 2016 
 
 
 
 
Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers 
www.parcconline.org/about 



 

Poverty Rates in Area Districts 



 

Effect of Poverty Rates on Scores 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All the PARCC test score data comes from the Illinois Report Card. 
www.illinoisreportcard.com 



Family Income Affects Test Scores 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Valerie Strauss , The bottom line on SAT scores in one chart, October 9, 2013 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/answer-sheet/wp/2013/10/09/the-bottom-line-on-sat-scores-in-one-chart/?utm_term=.62 
cb3fab7784 



Family Income Affects Test Scores 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Valerie Strauss 
 
 

Valerie Strauss , The bottom line on SAT scores in one chart, October 9, 2013 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/answer-sheet/wp/2013/10/09/the-bottom-line-on-sat-scores-in-one-chart/?utm_term=.62 
cb3fab7784 



Another View 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Valerie Strauss , The bottom line on SAT scores in one chart, October 9, 2013 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/answer-sheet/wp/2013/10/09/the-bottom-line-on-sat-scores-in-one-chart/?utm_term=.62 
cb3fab7784 



Low /Jay Boundary Change 
● Boundary Change was considered because Juliette Low’s projected enrollment for 

the 1988-89 school year was 223 total students while John Jay’s total enrollment 
was projected at 369 students. At that time, the total enrollment in the district was 
approximately 5300 students in grade K-8. 

● As part of the review process, the following options were considered by the Board; 

● Plan I: No boundary change 

● Plan II: Transfer of the Jamestown & Pharoahs apartment complexes to Low 
 
● Plan III: Transfer of the Arlington Place, Lynn Court & Lake Briarwood complexes / 

neighborhoods to Low 
 
● The Board approved Option II (Transfer Jamestown & Pharoahs apartment 

complexes to Low) on 5.2.88 



School District 59 Today 
● 75,000 Residents in 24 square miles 

● Nearly 6,800 students in pre-K – 8 
● Early Learning Center 
● 3 Junior High Schools 
● 11 Elementary Schools 

● 53.6% Low income, 34.8% English learners 

● In any given year between 50 and 70 languages are spoken in 
the homes of our students. 

● Diversity is something to be celebrated 
…but it also brings challenges. 



The Need for Change 
● The Board, recognizing the need for change in response to 

the district’s changing demographics, specifically set out 
to hire a superintendent who is: 

● an instructional leader who can bring teaching and 
learning in line with evidence-based best practices 

● sensitive to the needs of a diverse population 

● able to conceive, plan, and implement a multi-year 
strategy of change that will benefit all children 



What has Changed? 
● July 2013 Dr. Fessler joins District 59 

● The district’s mission is to provide the skills, knowledge, and 
experiences that will prepare students to be successful for life 

● Evidence-based best practices that are results-oriented 

● Social, emotional, and academic development are necessary for 
children to be successful 

● Focus on educational equity 

● Inclusive practices 

● Parental/caregiver  involvement 

● Clear vision is established for teaching and learning 



Teaching and Learning 
● All principals are expected to be instructional leaders. 

● Utilizing instructional approaches that engage children in 
a deeper level of inquiry embedded in the solving of 
real-world problems. 

● Students learning is more self-directed so that they 
develop stronger ownership and a deeper commitment to 
their learning. 



Professional Development 
● The changes taking place in teaching and learning are 

transformational, requiring much deliberate thought, 
action, and extensive, ongoing administrator and teacher 
training 

● Multiyear effort 

● Progress is being made 

● 3 – 5 additional years before full effect is felt 



Focus on Inquiry 
● Neither the Board of Education nor the Administration are 

interested in fostering a focus on test scores for measuring 
student growth. Students are so much more than a single score 
at a single snapshot in time. 

● We don’t want our teachers teaching to the test at the expense 
of fostering deep learning. 

● We want our children to be engaged, life-long learners who 
have the ability to operate successfully in the world. 

● We believe that by providing our district’s children with the 
fundamental social, emotional, and academic skills necessary 
for success, the test scores will rise as a natural outgrowth of 
the teaching and learning that takes place in our schools. 



What about Ratings? 
● “GreatSchools’ ratings are simplistic. They are almost useless 

for determining a school’s overall quality or its suitability for a 
particular child. They do not begin to capture a school’s 
activities and specializations that matter to children and 
parents. Furthermore, by focusing only on the average score, 
GreatSchools obscures the fact that a group of students may be 
doing very well, another group may be greatly improving (high 
value added), or that students in a specialized subject area are 
quite strong.” 

 

– Jan Resseger, December 2, 2015 
 
 
 

http://www.alternet.org/education/educational-redlining-how-zillows-school-ratings-help-segregate-communiti   
es 



About Those Scores… 
● Average scores only tell part of the story 



 

Juliette Low Posts Solid Gains 
● PARCC* 2015, 2016 

● Under Principal Susan Ejma's strong instructional 
leadership, scores have already decisively improved at 
Juliette Low. 

 

Year Met/Exceeded 

2015 29% 
2016 36% 

● For comparison, the 2016 state average was 33%. 
 
 
*Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers 



Non-low Income Students 
 
 
 
 
 

3Surprisingly District 25's composite score for all students, was 64%, higher than the score for non-low 
income students only. 



Non-low Income Students 
● In fact, Juliette Low had the highest PARCC non-low 

income meet/exceeds score in District 59 

● John Jay came in fifth out of ten schools by the same 
measure 



District 59 
● The District 59 Board of Education and the Administration 

have a strong collaborative commitment to strengthening 
teaching and learning for all our children. 

● Our vision: 
One District – One Population – One Core Purpose. 

● We take pride in our highly diverse schools, students, and 
families. 

● This is our community. 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 1 

Official Minutes of the 7uesday, April 2�, 2017 
Board of Education Meeting 
 

 
Call to Order The Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59 in           

County of Cook, State of Illinois, held a meeting in accordance with provisions             
of the Open Meetings Act, according to Illinois law, at the District 59             
Administration Center, 2123 South Arlington Heights Road, Arlington Heights,         
Illinois on Tuesday, April 25, 2017. The meeting was called to order at             
7:00PM.  

  
Roll Call Members Present: President Barbara Somogyi, Vice-President Janice       

Krinsky, Karen Osmanski, Secretary - Members: Sunil Bhave, Tim Burns,          
Sharon Roberts and Mardell Schumacher 
Members Absent: none 

Others Superintendent, Dr. Arthur Fessler; Associate Superintendent, Tom Luedloff;        
Assistant Superintendent for Innovation and Communications, Ben Grey;        
Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, Kelley Zerfahs; Assistant        
Superintendent for Education Service, Karen Starr; Assistant Superintendent        
for Instruction, Maureen McAbee; Executive Director of Student Growth and          
Accountability, Dr. Josh Carpenter; and Recording Secretary, Kathie Lange. 

Also Present Dr. Kim Barrett, Director of Literacy; Martina Perez, Assistant Principal          
Devonshire; John Navickas, Assistant Principal Friendship Jr. HIgh; Jodi         
Briggs, Devonshire; Michael Merritt, Principal Brentwood; Carrie Abrams,        
Assistant Principal Robert Frost; Nick Jahnke 614 W. Haven, 60005; Ted &            
Michele Mason 534 Oak St., 60007; David & Derilyn Rhodes 1710 S. Ridge             
Dr. 60005; Mike & Mary Vicars 1715 S. Ridge Dr. 60005; Sasho & Kathy              
Aglikin 1007 W. Haven, 60005; Ron & Gloria Schmidt 1534 S. Princeton,            
60005; Ann & George Shibayama 103. W. Emerson, 60005; Dan Makowski           
1214 W. Cedar Ln., 60005; Carol Stuber Haven Dr., 60005; Tom McDonnell            
1307 W. Cedar, 60005/Surrey Ridge West Civic Association; Rosann Murray          
1108 W. White Oak St., 60005; Ann Larson 1527 S. Highland, 60005; Joan             
Burke 1634 S. Chesterfield, 60005; Barbara Johnson, 60005 

Pledge of  
Allegiance  

 
 
AUDIENCE RECESS  

 
No one came forward to address the Board of Education. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  
 

   Mrs. Somogyi indicated that due to the unusually large number of Action Items 
for this meeting, she had requested the seven items that were discussed at 
the April 10, 2017 Board meeting be moved to a Consent Agenda.   Any Board 
member can request an item to be removed from the Consent Agenda if 
further discussion is desired.  



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 2 

 
No items were requested to be removed from the Consent Agenda. 
 

MOTION by Ms. Krinsky, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the following resolutions             
listed in the Consent Agenda: 

 
5.01 ADOPTION OF BOARD POLICY CHANGES FROM PRESS UPDATE #94 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April 2017, the            
Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education        
approves updates to the Community Consolidated School District 59         
Board of Education Policy Manual. 
 

● 2:100 Board Member Conflict of Interest (edited)  
● 3:70   Succession of Authority 
● 4:15   Identity Protection  (edited)  
● 5:120  Employee Ethics; and Conduct; and Conflict of Interest - 
● 5:230  Maintaining Student Discipline  
● 5:285  Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus and Commercial 

Vehicle Drivers -  
● 5:300  Schedules and Employment Year  
● 6:70    Teaching About Religions  
● 7:100   Health, Eye, and Dental Examinations; Immunizations, 

and Exclusion of Students  
 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April 2017, the             
Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education        
reviewed the policies listed below.  

5 Year Review  
● 4:180  Pandemic Paredness (no changes) 
● 5:80    Court Duty (edited) 
● 5:140  Solicitations By or From Staff (edited) 
● 5:210  Resignations (no changes) 
● 5:320  Evaluations (no changes) 

 
 
5.02 AWARD OF BIDS FOR RENOVATIONS AND ADDITION AT DEVONSHIRE 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
WHEREAS, members of the Board of Education approved moving 
forward with an addition and interior renovations at Devonshire 
Elementary School during the October 24, 2016, Board of Education 
meeting;  

WHEREAS, the administration has recommended the lowest       
responsible base bids be awarded as attached, totalling $3,086,248; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of           
April, 2017, the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of          



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 3 

Education award trade contracts in the amount of $3,086,248 and          
including a construction contingency in the amount of $150,000 for a           
total of $3,236,248. 

  
5.03 AWARD OF BIDS FOR INTERIOR RENOVATIONS AT FRIENDSHIP JR. HIGH 

SCHOOL 
WHEREAS, members of the Board of Education approved moving         
forward with interior renovations at Friendship Junior High during the          
October 24, 2016, Board of Education meeting;  

WHEREAS, 35 bids were opened on March 23, 2017 for interior           
renovations at Friendship Junior High; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of           
April, 2017, the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of          
Education award trade contracts in the amount of $655,568 and          
including a construction contingency in the amount of $50,000 for a           
total of $705,568. 

5.04   AWARD OF FLOORING REPLACEMENT AT HOLMES JR. HIGH SCHOOL 
WHEREAS, floor replacement drawings and specifications were developed 
by ARCON and Associates and the District and put out to bid; 
 
WHEREAS,  two (2) bids were opened on March 23, 2017 for flooring 
replacement at Holmes Junior High; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, on the 25th day of April, 2017, the 
Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59 approve 
the award for flooring replacement work at Holmes Junior High to Johnson 
Floor Company, Countryside, IL, for base bid $631,979.  

 
5.05   APPROVAL OF THREE YEAR CONTRACT FOR ELECTRIC  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017 the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve a 36 month           
contract with AEP Energy to provide the District with electric at a cost of              
$.0625200.  
  

5.06   APPROVAL OF TWO-YEAR CONTRACT FOR NATURAL GAS  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT ON THE 25TH day of April, 2017 the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve Option 2 for a            
24 month contract with Centerpoint to provide the District with natural gas            
at a cost of $0.001 for NGI Index and $.0029 for Basis to NYMEX and the                
District owning the natural gas storage.  

 
5.07   RENEWAL FOR REFUSE/RECYCLING SERVICE   

WHEREAS Republic Services has provided the required services while 
demonstrating a high level of performance; 
 
WHEREAS, Republic Services has agreed to keep rates the same for 
2017-2018; 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 4 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, on the 25th day of April, 2017, the 
Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59 approve 
the renewal for refuse/recycling service to Republic Services, 2101 South 
Busse Road, Mount Prospect, Illinois 60056, for the 2017-2018 school year at 
an estimated monthly rate of $4,894.10 and an approximate annual cost of 
$58,729.20. 

 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

 
REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Mrs. Roberts attended the Finance Committee Meeting.  
 
Ms. Krinsky provided Board members with a copy of the Early Learning User’s 
Guide for Illinois School Boards.  The document represents a collaboration 
between IASB and the Ounce of Prevention Fund.  
 
Mrs. Schumacher thanked everyone who went to polls to vote for her.   Due to 
her accident, she was unable to go out to campaign and appreciates being 
re-elected to the Board of Education. 
 
Dr. Burns met with Arlington Heights Mayor Thomas Hayes to share details 
about the concerns expressed at the April 10, 2017 meeting by Juliette Low 
community members. 
 
Dr. Burns thanked Dr. Fessler for sending a letter to the Elk Grove Park 
District regarding some concerns about teen activities that have been 
occurring in some of the village’s park areas and adjacent parking lots of 
District 59 schools.  
 
Dr. Burns expressed concerns about the impact of not having a state budget 
for the last 22 months. He shared that currently human service and mental 
health service facilities are owed more than 16 billion dollars.  

 
 
 



 

 

Board   Minutes   –    04/25/2017 

Item   –    6.01(c)  

Page   5 
SPECIAL   INTEREST   TOPIC  
 
BIRTH      8   EARLY   LEARNING   ROADMAPS   FOR   MATH   AND   LITERACY 
 

Dr.   Kim   Barrett,   Dr.   Josh   Carpenter   and   Ms.   Kelley   Zerfahs   gave   a 

presentation   on   Birth      8   Early   Learning   Roadmaps   for   Math   and   Literacy. 

(Presentation   will   be   attached   to   the   minutes   of   this   meeting).  

 

Ms.   Schumacher   agrees   that   community   outreach   and   helping   District   59 

families   is   important   and   she   supports   the   program,   but   she   objects   to   the 

name   “Birth      8”.         She   feels   that   the   community   may   be   confused   and   think 

that   we   are   teaching   infants/babies,   which   she   would   not   support.   

 

Mrs.   Schumacher   made   reference   to   Board   Policy   6:160      Parent   Involvement.   

Parents/guardians   of   English   Learners   will   be   informed   how   they   can: 

1)   be   involved   in   the   education   of   their   children,   and   2)   be   active  

participants   in   assisting   their   children   to   attain   English   proficiency, 

achieve   at   high   levels   within   a   wellrounded   education,   and   meet   the  

challenging   State   academic   standards   expected   of   all   students. 

 

Mrs.   Schumacher   stated   that   she   feels   we   should   be   teaching   our   preschool 

students   in   English.      She   provided   this   quote   for   the   meeting   minutes:      “   If   we 

don't   expect   and   help   our   parents   to   learn   English,   how   can   we   expect   them 

to   help   their   children   to   learn   English.” 

 

Ms.   Krinsky   responded   that   we   have   partnered   with   outside   agencies   to   help 

parents   who   want   to   learn   English.         She   also   stated   that   she   believes 

research   supports   the   model   the   District   uses   for   English   language   learners.  

 

Mrs.   McAbee   will   share   updated   ACCESS   data   to   show   how   our   EL   students 

in   Dual   Language   Spanish   programs   are   increasing   in   their   acquisition   of 

English   since   the   District   has   transitioned   fully   to   a   dual   language/biliteracy 

approach. 
 

Dr.   Burns   asked   if   the   Birth      8   program   will   be   part   of   the   District’s      current 

$500,000   early   childhood   block   grant   or   if   it   will   operate   outside   of   the   current 

grant.         His   concern   is   that   if   we   are   using   local   dollars   to   prepare   these 

preschool   students,   will   those   families   remain   in   the   District   so   that   we   will 

see   the   benefit   of   the   early   intervention   efforts?   

 

Dr.   Fessler   indicated   that   the   expansion   of   preschool   and   the   developmental 

kindergarten   was   part   of   the   staffing   plan   approved   by   the   Board   of 

Education.      He   shared   that   Ms.   Karen   Starr   is   working   on   an   Early   Childhood 

Expansion   Grant.      If   the   grant   is   awarded,   it   would   not   be   available   until   later 

in   the   fall.            He   also   indicated   that   the   District’s   mobility   rate   is   between 

1013%   at   this   time. 

 

 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 6 

 
 
ACTION ITEMS  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF BOARD OF EDUCATION ELECTION RESULTS 
  
MOTION  by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Cook County Clerk has canvassed the           
official election results of the non-partisan election for school board          
members, which was held on April 4, 2017, and presented the results            
of the canvass to the Community Consolidated School District 59          
Board of Education; 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT it has been determined that          
Sharon Roberts, Karen Osmanski, Janice Krinsky, and Mardell        
Schumacher have each been elected to serve four-year terms as          
Board Members of the Board of Education of Community Consolidated          
School District 59. 
 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

RE-ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

BOARD MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT  
Board members read and agreed to terms in the Code of Conduct. 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 8 

DETERMINATION OF LENGTH OF OFFICE -- PRESIDENT, VICE 
PRESIDENT AND SECRETARY TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
MOTION by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education establishes the 
length of office for the president, vice-president, and secretary to be for 
a period of one (1) year; the next election of officers to be held in 2018. 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF STIPEND FOR THE BOARD SECRETARY 
No motion was made to move this item. Consequently, there will be no stipend 
for the Board secretary. 
 
NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF PRESIDENT 
 

MOTION by Ms. Krinsky, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the following resolution: 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, Mrs. Barbara 
Somogyi is elected President of this Board of Education. 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  
 

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 
NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF VICE-PRESIDENT 
 
MOTION by Mrs. Somogyi, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the following resolution: 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 9 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, Ms. Janice Krinsky is 
elected Vice President of this Board of Education. 

 
Roll Call 

Aye 6 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, and 
Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 1 Schumacher 

Motion Carried: 6-0-0-1 
 

NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF SECRETARY 
 

MOTION by Mrs. Osmanski, seconded by Dr. Burns to adopt the following resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, Mr. Sunil Bhave is 
elected Secretary of this Board of Education. 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

ADOPTION OF BOARD POLICY MANUAL 
MOTION by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education hereby reaffirms the 
adoption of the District 59 Board Policy Manual.  

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 10 

 
 
 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

MOTION    by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following 
resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the District             
59 Board of Education hereby sets the date, time and place for its             
regular meetings in accordance with the listing of meeting dates and           
times attached to this resolution.  
 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 11 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the Board of Education of Community 
Consolidated School District 59, Cook County, Illinois that regular meetings 
will be held on the following dates: 

 
Monday, July 10, 2017 

 
Monday, August 14, 2017 
Monday, August 28, 2017 

 
Monday, September 11, 2017 
Monday September 25, 2017 

 
Tuesday, October 10, 2017 
Monday, October 23, 2017 

 
Monday, November 13, 2017 
Monday, November 27, 2017  

 
Monday, December 11, 2017 

 
Monday, January 8, 2018 
Monday, January 22, 2018 

 
Monday, February 12, 2018 
Monday, February 26, 2018 

 
Monday, March 12, 2018 

 
Monday, April 2, 2018  
Monday, April 23, 2018  

 
Monday, May 14, 2018 
Tuesday, May 29, 2018 

  
Monday, June 11, 2018 
Monday, June 25, 2018 

Regular Board Meetings will normally begin at 7:00 p.m. and are held in the 
Boardroom of the BOE/Administration Center, 2123 South Arlington Heights 
Road, Arlington Heights, IL  60005.  

DATED this 25th day of April, 2017, at Arlington Heights, Illinois. 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 12 

 
 
 
STAFF APPRECIATION WEEK  -  MAY 1-5, 2017 

 
MOTION by Mrs. Schumacher, seconded by Mr. Bhave to adopt the following 
resolution: 

WHEREAS: Preparing Students to be Successful for Life is the mission of            
Community Consolidated School District 59; and 

WHEREAS: the economic future of our community, state, and nation is           
dependent upon a knowledgeable and informed citizenry; and 

WHEREAS: the week of May 1-5, 2017 has been designated as National            
Teacher Appreciation Week;  

WHEREAS: members of the Board of Education desire to recognize          
teachers and all employees of School District 59 for their dedicated           
contributions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April,            
2017, on behalf of the residents, parents and students, and especially           
members of the Board of Education, the week of May 1-5, 2017, is hereby              
proclaimed as Staff Appreciation Week within Community Consolidated        
School District 59. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the President         
and Secretary of the Board of Education will sign the proclamation           
attached hereto and a certified copy of the proclamation will be sent to             
each school within Community Consolidated School District 59. 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

Board members expressed their appreciation for District 59 staff. 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 13 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ON WAIVER FOR 2018-19 SCHOOL HOLIDAYS 
 

MOTION by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski that the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting be opened on this 
date, April 25, 2017 for a public hearing on the School Holidays for the 
2018-19 School Year and that the secretary shall record the time as 8:14 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 14 

Roll Call 

Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 
Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
No one came to address the Board during the open hearing. 

 
MOTION       by Mrs. Schumacher, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting be 
closed on this date, April 25, 2017 for a public hearing on the School Holidays 
for the 2018-19 School Year and that the secretary shall record the time as 
8:15 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 
 
GROVE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL REQUEST TO ACCEPT GRANT AWARD - 
ECOLAB FOUNDATION ELK GROVE VILLAGE CHAPTER 

 
MOTION by Ms. Krinsky, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by           
Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $1,359.94 from the             
Ecolab Foundation, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk           
Grove Village, IL 60007. 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 15 

Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $1,359.94 from the 
Ecolab Foundation, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk 
Grove Village, IL 60007. The grant award is to be used to benefit the Family 
And Consumer Science Curriculum by helping students in 8th grade explore 
career options in the culinary and baking fields.  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate         
to the donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the             
Board of Education, and that this donation shall be listed in the “official”             
minutes of this meeting.  

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 
Grove Junior High School Request To Accept Two Grant Awards, Ecolab 
Foundation Elk Grove Village Chapter 

 
MOTION by Ms. Krinsky, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following resolution: 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by           
Grove Junior High School to accept two grant awards of $2,991.89 each, from             
the Ecolab Foundation, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave.,           
Elk Grove Village, IL 60007. 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by 
Grove Junior High School to accept two grant awards of $2,991.89 each, from 
the Ecolab Foundation, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., 
Elk Grove Village, IL 60007. The grant award will allow students and teachers 
participating in the Physical Education Curriculum to better assess data and 
progress towards individual student and teacher fitness goals.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate to 
the donor, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the Board 
of Education, and that these donations shall be listed in the “official” minutes 
of this meeting.  

 

 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 16 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

GROVE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL REQUEST TO ACCEPT GRANT AWARD, 
MIDWEST DAIRY ASSOCIATION 

 
MOTION by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following 

resolution: 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by 
Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $500 from the Midwest 
Dairy Association, 2015 Rice Street, St. Paul, MN 55113. 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by 
Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $500 from the Midwest 
Dairy Association, 2015 Rice Street, St. Paul, MN 55113. The grant award is 
part of the Midwest Dairy Association’s “Becoming a Touchdown School In 
The Fuel Up To Play” program. The money awarded through this program 
allows opportunities for PE Curriculum focused in the fight against obesity.  

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate 
to the donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the 
Board of Education, and that this donation shall be listed in the “official” 
minutes of this meeting.  

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 17 

 
GROVE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL REQUEST TO ACCEPT GRANT AWARD, 
ECOLAB FOUNDATION ELK GROVE VILLAGE CHAPTER 

 
MOTION by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by           
Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $1,700 from the Ecolab              
Foundation, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk Grove           
Village, IL 60007.  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by 
Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $1,700 from the Ecolab 
Foundation, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk Grove 
Village, IL 60007. The “I Think, I Learn, Therefore I Blog” is a grant proposal 
that will engage students in 21st century learning.  Students will use digital 
and non-digital text and resources to analyze past and present Social Science 
content.  

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate to          
the donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the            
Board of Education, and that this donation shall be listed in the “official”             
minutes of this meeting.  

 
Roll Call 

Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 
Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

 
 
Grove Junior High School Request To Accept Grant Award, Ecolab 
Foundation Elk Grove Village Chapter 

 
MOTION by Ms. Krinsky, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the following resolution: 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by           



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 18 

Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $2,990 from the Ecolab              
Foundation Visions For Learning And Educator Grant, Elk Grove Village          
Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk Grove Village, IL 60007.  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by 
Grove Junior High School to accept a grant award of $2,990 from the Ecolab 
Foundation Visions For Learning And Educator Grant, Elk Grove Village 
Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk Grove Village, IL 60007.  The 
Non-fiction Books is a grant proposal that will expand the school’s library 
collection and support the Dual Language, Spanish Heritage and Spanish 
classes as students conduct research in Spanish.  

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate         
to the donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the             
Board of Education, and that this donation shall be listed in the “official”             
minutes of this meeting.  

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

HOLMES JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL REQUEST TO ACCEPT GRANT 
CAMPAIGN AWARD,    CHICAGO BEARS FOOTBALL CLUB AND THE 
AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION 

 
MOTION by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following 

resolution: 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education accept the grant campaign           
award of $10,000 awarded to Holmes Junior High School by the Chicago            
Bears Football Club and The American Heart Association,1000 Football Drive          
Hallis Hall, Lake Forest, IL 60045, and 208 S. LaSalle St. Suite 1500,             
Chicago, IL 60604.  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education accept the grant campaign 
award of $10,000 awarded to Holmes Junior High School by the Chicago 
Bears Football Club and The American Heart Association,1000 Football Drive 
Hallis Hall, Lake Forest, IL 60045, and 208 S. LaSalle St. Suite 1500, 
Chicago, IL 60604. The grant campaign is targeted to support and expand 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 19 

health and fitness programming at the middle school level. Holmes Junior High 
School is the grand prize winner of the campaign promoted by the National 
Football League and the American Heart Association. The grant campaign 
money awarded will be used to fund Holmes Junior High School PE 
Curriculum that increases student physical activity.  

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate to          
the donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the            
Board of Education, and that this donation shall be listed in the “official”             
minutes of this meeting.  

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
DISCUSSION 
ITEM 
 

DISTRICT 59 COMMUNITY DISCUSSION 
 
Mrs. Osmanski shared that since the last Board meeting she thought about 
the possibility of using a formal Community Engagement Process to address 
the concerns of Arlington Heights community member that spoke to the Board 
at the April 10, 2017 Board meeting.  
 
Mrs. Mary Vicars requested to address the Board of Education.  
 
Mrs. Somogyi explained that this portion of the meeting is intended for 
members of the Board of Education to have discussion on topics listed on the 
Board agenda. 
 
Dr. Burns request to have additional historical information about demographics 
and attendance boundaries.  Mr. Luedloff indicated that he will investigate 
further and provide more in depth information to the Board. 
 
Mrs. Osmanski would like to to look at this issue globally and work on 
communication and marketing strategies to help change perception 
throughout all of the District 59 communities and not focus only on one 
community.  
 
Mrs. Somogyi addressed members of the community to inform them that 
although this portion of the board meeting is typically for Board member 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 20 

discussion, the Board would make an exception and allow comments from the 
audience during this portion of the Board meeting.  
 
Community member, Mrs. Vicars - 1715 S. Ridge Drive, Arlington Heights, 
read a prepared statement to respond to some of the comments that were 
made at the April 10, 2017 meeting.  Her comments/concerns centered on 
Juliette Low’s rating and the District 59’s rating due to PARCC scores.   Mrs. 
Vicars requested that the administration provide responses to the questions 
that she and others had asked during the April 10, 2017 meeting.  (Prepared 
statement attached to minutes of this meeting). 
 
Community member, Mrs. Gloria Schmidt - 1534 S. Princeton, Arlington 
Heights, expressed disappointment that the Board does not have answers to 
concerns brought forward at the April 10, 2017.  
 
Mrs. Somogyi advised community members that the purpose of a Board 
meeting is not an opportunity for dialogue between Board and community. 
Community members are invited to make public comments, but there is no 
opportunity for dialogue during Board of Education meeting. 
 
Mrs. Somogyi stated that the Board will direct the administration to pull 
together information to respond to the questions from the community 
members.   She thanked the community members for attending. 
 
Dr. Fessler added that he would welcome the opportunity to meet with any 
interested community members to have a conversation about student learning 
and the District’s focus.  
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATION 
 
Mrs. Somogyi reminded Board members that when they are communicating 
with anyone concerning District 59 issues, the recommendation from the 
attorney is that only District email is used.  Social network is also something 
that Board members need to be extremely careful about. 
 
As a followup to  Mrs. Somogyi’s recommendation, Mr. Bhave added that the 
Attorney General has concluded that if two people have an email exchange on 
their private email account about public business, the information is subject to 
FOIA.  
 
TRANSPORTATION FUNDING 
Dr. Burns shared that he has heard rumors the state may not pay certain 
categorical funds.  His concern is that the District transportation fund will be 
running a deficit if the state does not pay. 
 
Dr. Fessler shared that the state comptroller issued a voucher for payment 
and confirmed that the state has not yet paid.   He is hearing that the state will 
likely not have the money to pay all of its expenses and transportation is one, 
along with other line items in the District budget.  
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 21 

Dr. Burns asked what the District’s plan will be moving forward if the state 
doesn’t provide the funds for transportation. 
 
Dr. Fessler indicated that we have already budgeted the money for 
transportation; the reimbursement is the issue for this year.   If necessary, the 
funds will need to come from the fund balance if the state does not reimburse 
us.   Dr. Fessler agrees that there is a sense of urgency and he will speak with 
Ms. Nissen about a strategy moving forward. 
 

NEW/CONTINUING BUSINESS 
Board members were asked to review the Board Committee assignments and 
contact Mrs. Somogyi or Mrs. Lange with their preferences for continuing to 
serve on the same committees or moving to new committees. 
 

REPORTS OF THE SUPERINTENDENT’S TEAM 
Strategic Plan Focus 2017-18  
Dr. Fessler shared that there will be discussion about the Strategic Plan Focus 
for 2017-18 at the May 8, 2017 Board meeting.   The Board will take action at 
a later date.  

 
State Budget Concerns  
Dr. Fessler shared that Mr. Tony Sanders, District U-46 Superintendent, has 
started a grassroots movement to strategically push legislators to pass a state 
budget.  Illinois is losing 11 million dollars per day by not having a budget.   Dr. 
Fessler will be sending a communication to District 59 families asking that they 
join in the effort to put pressure on legislators to pass a budget. 
 

 Elk Grove Village Planning Commission Meeting  
Mr. Luedloff shared that the District had an informal pre-meeting with the Elk 
Grove Village Planning Commission.   The District believes that the plans for 
the new building meet all village ordinances.  

 
The Planning Commission shared that the District will need a special use 
permit because we will have two buildings (Administration/PD Center and 
Commissary).  
 
The Planning Commission Identified these four items that they would like the 
District to consider before the official hearing (approximately 4-6 weeks). 
 

● Raise brick maintenance wall from 6 ft. to 8 ft. 
● Different types of trees planted to the south and a higher berm 
● Foundation planting around the building 
● Traffic Flow 

 
Dr. Fessler indicated that Mr. Rossi will review these 
recommendations/concerns and provide feedback.  
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 22 

 
 
TITLE I SCHOOLWIDE PLANS 
Mrs. McAbee indicated the District will be updating the Title I Schoolwide 
Plans to align with ESSA requirements.  Although the plans  will not require 
Board  approval, the will be made available to the Board for review. 
 

 CLOSED SESSION 
MOTION at  9:23 PM  by      , seconded by     to adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017,  

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 
 

RECONVENE 
MOTION at   10:03 PM by , seconded by to adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is reconvened. 

 
 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
MOTION at 10:03 PM by , seconded by to adopt the following resolution: 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 23 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 25th day of April, 2017, the  Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is adjourned. 

 

Roll Call 
Aye 7 Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, 

Schumacher, and Somogyi 

Nay 0  

Absent 0  

Abstain 0  

Motion Carried: 7-0-0-0 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 24 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
PREPARED STATEMENT FROM MARY VICARS 
 
My name is Mary Cosenza Vicars, 1715 South Ridge Drive, AH, in the Juliette Low 
neighborhood. 
 
At the last meeting, some parents said that they are happy with their children’s education at 
Juliette Low. Your children might be doing well, but that is not the point.   You still ought to be 
concerned about the school’s rating and district’s overall low rating.   With scores so easily 
accessible to everyone, people have moved out of the neighborhood to get into different school 
districts and many young people won’t even consider a home in the Juliette Low neighborhood. 
We don’t have the luxury of not paying attention to test scores. After talking to real estate 
agents and looking at comps, homes are not selling quickly in our neighborhood and are worth 
10-15% less than in neighboring District 25.  
 
Now some of you might say that homeowners should not compare themselves to District 25 
because we have a different demographic than 25.  Fair or not fair, that is what is happening. 
Some homes in 59 are next door or across the street from homes in District 25.  Of course, 
prospective buyers are going to compare school ratings and when they do, they often rule out 
looking at a home in District 59. 
 
While I do think that the District can do more to get positive publicity in the papers about 
Juliette Low, if Juliette Low and Holmes’ scores improve, the negative perception of the District 
will improve.  No amount of positive publicity will make people want to buy a home in my 
neighborhood if the scores remain low.  
 
District officials tell us that they will not focus on the PARCC test, because they are providing a 
quality education and preparing students to be life-long learners.  How are you measuring that? 
Can you explain why Juliette Low and Holmes’ ratings improved while Forest View’s went 
down?  You need to know that because this time the scores went up for Low and Holmes, but 
they could as easily go down. 
 
When you say that you won’t prepare students for the PARCC test, the implication is that 
something is wrong with the PARCC exam.  The PARCC exam tests students in English 
beginning in 3 rd grade.  There is nothing wrong with testing students on Math, Reading, Writing, 
and Critical Thinking.  For example, students might have to explain the similarities and 
differences between two very different things.  People use critical thinking skills every day of 
their lives.  
 
In addition, teaching students test taking strategies is an important skill to have. They will be 
taking tests to place into classes in high school, to get into college, to become a teacher, 
doctor, or lawyer.  Objective tests will always be used and so we must prepare our students for 
them.  
Last time I spoke I showed how students in other school districts with similar demographics are 
doing better in terms of average PARCC exams according to SchoolDigger.com than some of 
the 59 schools.  What I found out is that other schools, such as Euclid School, prepare 



 
 

Board Minutes – 04/25/2017 
Item – 6.01(c)  

Page 25 

students for the PARCC exam from Day 1.  This afternoon I spoke to Central School in Rolling 
Meadows and they used the data that they get from PARCC to determine what content/skills 
they will work on the following year.  When students last year did not do well on the non-fiction  
passages, this year they started reading non-fiction stories.  Also schools can easily get 
practice tests online.  District 59 can do the wonderful things that you say you are doing and 
still teach good test taking strategies. 
 
Other school districts teach their LEP students differently than we do, with better results.  For 
example, Euclid School mainstreams their LEP students into gen ed classes in second grade. 
We keep them in their bilingual classes longer.  LEP students at Euclid School still receive 
support that they need in certain subjects. We have to make sure that our LEP students learn 
English at school, because they often do not get this opportunity at home. 
 
I also looked at District 62, because Janice did so in her slide presentation to show that low 
income is tied to low test scores.   (That is true, but there are other factors as well.) When 
looking at the five schools the in District 62 with the lowest family incomes and comparing that 
to the five lowest income schools in District 59, District 62 is doing significantly better in terms 
of average PARCC exams.  It is possible to have a low-income school and still do well.  
In addition to the District working to improve its PARCC scores, I would also like the District 
officials to respond to the following questions that were raised on April 10: 
 
Why are three other District 59 schools doing better than Juliette Low in terms of average 
PARCC scores?  Should we redraw boundaries that were made 25 years ago?  Should Ridge 
close? Should the Administration building be scaled down?  
I don’t think we need a committee to study these problems.  We don’t need to rehash this. 
What we do need is District officials to answer our questions in an an evening presentation in 
May or early June.  Afterwards, the audience could respond.  
 
A principal once told me that while administrators, teachers, and staff might be here from year 
to year, our students only have one chance to be in our classes.  Since they only have one 
shot with us, it is important that we get this right.  When I was teaching, I never forgot what my 
principal told me.  It is important that we get this right for all our kids who live in District 59.  It is 
also important that the decisions that we make don’t adversely affect the folks who own 
property within the District 59 boundaries.  If scores improve, people will want to send their 
children to our schools.  It is a win for the District; it is a win for the homeowners; and most 
importantly, it is a win for all our students. 
  
 



Birth through Eight Roadmaps

Board of Education Meeting 
April 25, 2017



The Why
The collective vision for early social emotional, literacy, and math 
learning is driven by a belief in equity over equality. The reality of 
our community is that not all learning environments, homes, 
community places, or schools are created equal.



“It is unreasonable to expect 
a one- or two-year 

pre-kindergarten program to 
close a gap formed over 

multiple years.”



Literacy 

While partnerships between families and the school to promote family literacy is 
not a new concept, they most often occur after a child has officially entered 
school. 

Current Practice

Future Practice
Early on, we must begin to cultivate a growth mindset that instills several 
beliefs in these budding readers and writers: 
● That they are capable of doing challenging work; 
● That their ideas are important and worth developing and sharing; and 
● That we learn by actually doing the real work as apprentices while being 

fearless, trying out new things, taking risk, and making mistakes.

The District 59 Literacy Road Map reflects a shared understanding of the work 
needed to cultivate lifelong readers and writers who are not only skillful, but also 
develop a positive identity as and towards reading and writing. These Drivers 
and Actionable Recommendations reflect opportunities within the current D59 
community and are directly informed by research.



District 59 Literacy Road Map
Preparing Students to be Successful for Life

Family Student Staff Instructional 
Coaching

Schools District

Drivers

Engage and Promote 
Family Literacy

Empower Skillful and 
Passionate Readers 

and Writers

Create Powerful 
Literacy Learning 

Experiences  Through 
Effective Literacy 

Teachers

Advance 
Transformational 

Professional 
Development

Strengthen and 
Expand a Growth 
Mindset Towards 

Literacy and Learning

Establish and 
Propagate a 

Comprehensive 
Literacy Vision

Actionable Elements

● Support families 
through culturally 
responsive 
community initiatives 
and partnerships

● Increase family 
outreach and access 
to early literacy 
education 

● Provide parent 
education 
opportunities that 
promote family 
literacy 

● Engage students in 
authentic literacy 
experiences that 
honor their 
approximations, 
empower them to 
use their strengths, 
and build 
self-efficacy

● Promote readerly 
and writerly lives 
through daily 
apprenticeship 
opportunities 

● Cultivate a growth 
mindset where 
students identify 
themselves as real 
readers and writers 
as they progress 
along a continuum of 
literacy

● Develop a 
professional growth 
plan which includes 
partnering with 
instructional 
coaches, engaging 
in coaching cycles 

● Create a positive 
literacy environment 
through a reading 
and writing 
workshop approach 

● Utilize knowledge of 
effective literacy 
instruction to make 
informed, 
strength-based 
decisions

● Takes a leadership 
role in, contributes 
to, and facilitates 
professional learning 
opportunities on a 
local, national and/or 
statewide level

● Build teacher 
knowledge, practice, 
and  efficacy through  
in-depth planning, 
collaboration, and 
reflection; engaging 
in ongoing coaching 
cycles

● Develop positive 
coach/principal 
relationships to 
further enhance 
school-wide literacy 
instruction

● Establish and 
amplify a whole-child 
literacy mindset 
among students, 
staff, and community

● Design learning for 
staff that develops a 
clear and precise 
understanding of 
strength-based 
instructional 
planning and 
effective practice

● Embrace community 
outreach initiatives 
through cultivating 
lasting literacy 
relationships

● Support a vision of 
literacy where 
students engage in 
authentic literacy 
experiences, 
identifying as real 
readers and writers

● Bolster efforts and 
sustain 
commitments to 
develop literacy 
leadership among 
administrators

● Strengthen and 
expand current 
efforts toward parent 
education and 
community 
partnerships.



Math
Current Practice
While partnerships between families and the school is not a new concept, they most 
often occur after a child has officially entered school.

Future Practice
Early on, we must begin to cultivate a growth mindset that instills several beliefs in our 
young mathematicians: 

● They are encouraged to make mistakes and learn to value struggle and growth
● Have a belief that they can learn at high levels (we are not born with a math mind!) 
● They are mathematicians, they can make connections and they can see patterns
● Creative and visual mathematics, encouraging intuition and freedom of thought
● Connect mathematics to the world using mathematical modeling and application

The District 59 road map reflects an approach where students develop a passion for 
math through deep and powerful learning opportunities.  Students provided 
opportunities to be mathematicians, make connections and see patterns.



                       District 59 Mathematics Learning Overview
                      Preparing Students to be Successful for Life

Family Student Staff Instructional Coaching Schools District

                                                                                                           Drivers

Engage and 
Promote 

Mathematics

Develop skillful and 
passionate 

Mathematicians

Engage students in 
deep and powerful 

learning

Support and enhance 
professional practice 
through high quality 

coaching

Create a mathematics 
learning environment 

that capitalizes on 
student strengths

Implement an ambitious 
mathematics vision that 
prepares students for 

success in life

 Actionable Elements

● Provide parent 
education 
opportunities that 
promote family 
engagement in 
mathematical 
discussions and 
activities

● Increase family 
outreach and 
access to early 
math education 

● Engage students in 
authentic mathematical 
experiences and 
empower students to 
use their strengths

● Promote mathematical 
lives through daily 
exploration 
opportunities

● Model mathematical 
thinking to provide 
evidence of learning

● Cultivate a growth 
mindset where 
students identify 
themselves as real 
mathematicians as 
they progress along a 
continuum of math 
growth

● Create a positive, 
visual mathematics 
environment

● Utilize knowledge of 
effective mathematics 
instruction to make 
informed, 
strength-based 
decisions

● Provide real-world 
opportunities to 
explore mathematics

● Encourage mistakes 
and value struggle

● Meet students at their 
instructional level

● Assist in the development 
and implementation of 
deep and powerful 
learning opportunities

● Use available student 
information to design 
strength-based 
intervention and support

● Build teacher knowledge, 
practice, and  efficacy 
through  in-depth 
planning, collaboration, 
and reflection

● Remain current regarding 
practices associated with 
high quality mathematics 
instruction

● Design learning for staff 
that develops a clear and 
precise understanding of 
strength-based 
instructional planning and 
effective practice

● Embrace community 
outreach initiatives 
through cultivating lasting 
mathematics relationships

● Encourage a learning 
environment where 
students are expected to 
pose questions, reason, 
justify and be skeptical

● Commit to a vision of 
mathematics where 
students develop a 
passion for math through 
deep and powerful 
learning opportunities

● Have an unwavering 
belief that all students 
can learn at high levels

● Encourage a learning 
environment where 
students are expected to 
pose questions, reason, 
justify and be skeptical



Classroom circles in elementary schools
Wednesday social and emotional skill lessons
Parent engagement through Ready Rosie

Current Practice

● Student assessments to inform instruction
● Teacher Coaching
● Increase intervention for struggling students
● Increase family education and empowerment
● Provide additional resources at early stages

Future Practice

Social Emotional Learning



SEL District 59 Framework Domains
Preparing Students to be Successful for Life

Family Community Staff Instructional 
Coaching

Schools District

Drivers

Foster Family 
Engagement in 
Education by 

Educating and 
Empowering

Partner with 
Community 

Agencies to Support 
Families 

Create Climates of 
Inclusion and 

Cultures of Learning 
in all District 

Environments

Advance 
Transformational 

Professional 
Development

Expand and enhance 
quality, relevant, 

strengths-
based instruction

Construct equitable 
systems that ensure 

access to 
opportunity for all

Actionable Elements

● Gather feedback 
from families about 
their needs to drive 
district decisions

● Support families 
through culturally 
responsive 
community 
initiatives and 
partnerships

● Provide parent 
education 
opportunities that 
promote literacy, 
math, and SEL 
foundations

● Promote consistent 
community 
messages regarding 
early social 
emotional learning 

● Empower families to 
utilize community 
resources through 
neighborhood 
leaders and agencies

● Develop community 
and staff 
understanding of 
cultural 
responsiveness

● Ensure physically 
and emotionally safe 
learning 
environments that 
highlight students’ 
talents and strengths

● Develop social and 
emotional  
resource-rich 
learning 
environments

● Make resources 
available to families 
in all school facilities 

● Model and use 
culturally responsive 
practices in all 
environments

● Take a leadership 
role in and 
contributes to 
professional learning 
opportunities

● Build teacher 
knowledge, practice, 
and  efficacy by 
engaging in ongoing 
coaching cycles

● Develop positive 
relationships that 
model and enhance 
school-wide SEL

● Embed social and/or 
emotional 
instruction in all 
content area learning 
experiences

● Design measures 
and accountability 
for all student’s 
social-emotional 
growth and decision 
making

● Teach social and 
emotional skills to 
struggling students 
through creative, 
strengths-based 
intervention

● Review data by 
groups to see any 
patterns of need

● Use multiple sources 
of data to determine 
avenues that 
decrease 
marginalized groups’  
barriers to accessing 
support and 
education 

● Meet basic 
physiological needs 
of families, staff, and 
students (shelter, 
food, clothing, 
protection)

https://docs.google.com/a/ccsd59.org/document/d/1N5P6JOwc4tNDatzMWaS4TgmuL7mLmfa_0OIERlljM-U/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/a/ccsd59.org/document/d/1N5P6JOwc4tNDatzMWaS4TgmuL7mLmfa_0OIERlljM-U/edit?usp=sharing


Board Meeting-  05/08/2017 
Item No. 6.02 

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENTS  

 
RESOLUTION: May 8, 2017 -- FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 

DISBURSEMENTS 
 

SPECIAL NOTE: Board members are encouraged to call the       
Assistant Superintendent for Business Services on Friday prior to         
the meeting, should they have questions relative to individual items          
on the list. Further documentation can then be provided prior to the            
meeting.  

 
Recommendation 
The Administration recommends approval of the list as presented.  
 
Resolution  
Motion made by _____________________, seconded by _____________________ to 
adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves disbursements for          
fiscal year 2016-17 in the amount of $11,292,370 as presented per the            
attachments to this resolution.  

 

 



 

Board Meeting –  05/08/2017 
Item No. 6.03 

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION : ACCEPTANCE OF FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 
Background 
Financial statements showing the budget status; Investment Report, Activity Statement,          
Balance Sheet, and monthly Financial Summary Statement are generally presented to           
the Board of Education approximately six weeks following the month being reported. It             
is the method by which the Board is apprised of financial activities for the District. 
Recommendation 
The Administration recommends acceptance of the monthly financial reports. Because          
the district's finances are subject to audit, the term "accept" is used rather than              
"approve." 

 
Resolution 
Motion made by __________________, seconded by _______________________ 
to adopt the following resolution: 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017 the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education accept the following          
Financial Reports: 
6.03 Acceptance of Financial Reports 

a. Detail Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2017 
b. Combined Revenue and Expense Report as of March 31, 2017 
c. Investment Report as of March 31, 2017 
d. Activity Fund Statements as of March 31, 2017 

 

 



MONTHLY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 2017



2016-2017      Current Month Year to Date 2016-2017
Beginning Balance Activity Activity Ending Balance

Cash 11,696,228$             (10,089,541)$         (2,959,092)$              8,737,136$               

Taxes Receivable 37,285,959               -                         (27,173,768)              10,112,191               

Accounts Receivable 684,576                    (7,222)                    (683,344)                  1,232                        

Due From Other Govt Units 8,493,722                 -                         (1,891,866)                6,601,856                 

Accrued Interest Receivable 249,023                    (9,246)                    (164,629)                  84,394                      

Investments 96,296,819               36,451,013            13,726,243               110,023,062             

Prepaid Expenses 709                           (32)                           677                           

TOTAL ASSETS 154,707,036$           26,345,004$          (19,146,488)$            135,560,548$           

Accounts Payable 3,881,030$               3,716,723$            1,885,679$               5,766,709$               

Due to Other Government Unit 567,393                    -                         -                            567,393                    

Payroll Withholding 4,627,215                 (170,118)                (4,344,465)                282,750                    

Salary and Wages Payable 5,166,346                 -                         (5,166,346)                -                            

Deferred Income 112,431                    -                         (28,479)                    83,952                      

Due to Activity Funds 47,787                      (1,718)                    (2,782)                      45,005                      

Deferred  Revenue 16,714,236               (42,610)                  (169,327)                  16,544,909               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,116,438$             3,502,277$            (7,825,720)$              23,290,718$             

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 123,590,598             22,842,727            (11,320,768)              112,269,830             

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
AND FUND BALANCE 154,707,036$           26,345,004$          (19,146,488)$            135,560,548$           

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59
BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUNDS
MARCH 2017



Month Year to Date
Budget Actual Actual Remaining YTD %

Revenue

Local 67,330,078$           26,767,421$          43,448,442$          23,881,636$         64.53%

State 11,804,113             1,090,399              7,032,934              4,771,179             59.58%

Federal 5,462,154               530,864                 2,767,784              2,694,370             50.67%

TOTAL REVENUE 84,596,345$           28,388,684$          53,249,160$          31,347,185$         62.94%
Expenditures

Salaries 64,834,503$           4,841,293$            39,920,171$          24,914,332$         61.57%

Benefits 10,869,760             928,612                 7,117,074              3,752,686             65.48%

Purchased Services 6,601,966               1,567,793              5,206,234              1,395,732             78.86%

Supplies 4,514,054               221,701                 2,088,805              2,425,249             46.27%

Capital Outlay 11,470                    -                         -                         11,470                  0.00%

Other 3,385,430               1,469,343              3,135,534              249,896                92.62%

Equipment 467,947                  76,560                   290,633                 177,314                62.11%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 90,685,130$           9,105,302$            57,758,451$          32,926,679$         63.69%

Revenue Over Expenditures (6,088,785)$            19,283,382$          (4,509,291)$           

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59

The above Revenue and Expense Budget and YTD figures exclude TRS In-Kind and "Other Financing Sources (Uses)."  

The Fiscal Year 2016/17 allocation for both Revenue and Expense for TRS On-Behalf Contribution is $20,492.304

MARCH 2017

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
EDUCATIONAL FUND

 $-   !
 $10,000,000 !
 $20,000,000 !
 $30,000,000 !
 $40,000,000 !
 $50,000,000 !
 $60,000,000 !
 $70,000,000 !
 $80,000,000 !
 $90,000,000 !

 $100,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

REVENUE!

 $-   !
 $10,000,000 !
 $20,000,000 !
 $30,000,000 !
 $40,000,000 !
 $50,000,000 !
 $60,000,000 !
 $70,000,000 !
 $80,000,000 !
 $90,000,000 !

 $100,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

EXPENDITURES!



COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FUND
MARCH 2017

Month Year to Date
Budget Actual Actual Remaining YTD %

Revenue

Local 7,645,320$             2,267,317$            4,509,774$        3,135,546$         58.99%

State -                         -$                      23,627$             (23,627)$            0.00%

TOTAL REVENUE 7,645,320$             2,267,317$            4,509,774$        3,135,546$         58.99%
 
Expenditures

Salaries 4,052,340$             309,645$               2,871,714$        1,180,626$         70.87%

Benefits 795,889                  64,948                   531,205             264,684              66.74%

Purchased Services 1,175,533               250,440                 1,183,722          (8,189)                100.70%

Supplies 1,461,703               148,085                 1,089,505          372,198              74.54%

Capital Outlay 3,312,000               201,807                 2,575,730          736,270              77.77%

Other 192,500                  1,190                     4,715                 187,785              2.45%

Equipment 10,000                    -                        2,931                 7,069                  29.31%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,999,965$           976,115$               8,259,522$        2,740,443$         75.09%

Revenue Over Expenditures (3,354,645)             1,291,202              (3,749,748)         

The above Revenue and Expense Budget and YTD figures exclude "Other Financing Sources (Uses)."  

 $-   !

 $2,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

 $6,000,000 !

 $8,000,000 !

 $10,000,000 !

 $12,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

EXPENDITURE!

 $-   !

 $2,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

 $6,000,000 !

 $8,000,000 !

 $10,000,000 !

 $12,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

REVENUE!



COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
MARCH 2017

Month Year to Date
Budget Actual Actual Remaining YTD %

Revenue

Interest on Investment -$                       -$                      -$                   -$                   0.00%

TOTAL REVENUE -$                       -$                      -$                   -$                   0.00%
 
Expenditures

Purchased Services 1,443,500$             768,835$               1,274,171$        169,329$            88.27%

Supplies 400,000                  -                        -                     400,000              0.00%

Equipment -                         -                        -                     -                     0.00%

Capital Outlay 10,500,000             -                        -                     10,500,000         0.00%

Contingency/Other -                         -                        -                     -                     0.00%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,343,500$           768,835$               1,274,171$        11,069,329$       10.32%

Revenue Over Expenditures (12,343,500)           (768,835)               (1,274,171)         

The above Revenue and Expense Budget and YTD figures exclude "Other Financing Sources (Uses)."  

 $-   !

 $5,000,000 !

 $10,000,000 !

 $15,000,000 !

 $20,000,000 !

    
BUDGET     YTD!

EXPENDITURE!

 $-   !

 $5,000,000 !

 $10,000,000 !

 $15,000,000 !

 $20,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

REVENUE!



COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

TRANSPORTATION FUND
MARCH 2017

Month Year to Date
Budget Actual Actual Remaining YTD %

Revenue

Local 3,596,105$           1,410,318$      2,262,411$         1,333,694$           62.91%

State 1,728,982             -                   514,415              1,214,567             29.75%

TOTAL REVENUE 5,325,087$           1,410,318$      2,776,826$         2,548,261$           52.15%
 
Expenditures

Salaries 244,150$              11,277$           129,567$            114,583$              53.07%

Benefits 41,905                  3,894               31,993                9,912                    76.35%

Purchased Services 4,013,007             466,740           2,883,784           1,129,223             71.86%

Supplies 164,000                21,840             117,860              46,140                  71.87%

Capital Outlay 50,500                  -                   -                     50,500                  0.00%

Other 15,300                  -                   311                     14,989                  2.03%

Equipment 30,000                  -                   17,997                12,003                  59.99%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,558,862$           503,751$         3,181,512$         1,377,350$           69.79%

Revenue Over Expenditures 766,225                906,567           (404,686)            

The above Revenue and Expense Budget and YTD figures exclude "Other Financing Sources (Uses)."  

 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

 $5,000,000 !

 $6,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

EXPENDITURES!

 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

 $5,000,000 !

 $6,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

REVENUE!



COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT/SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
MARCH 2017

Month Year to Date
Budget Actual Actual Remaining YTD %

Revenue

Local 3,476,916$           910,233$              1,980,591$         1,496,325$           56.96%

TOTAL REVENUE 3,476,916$           910,233$              1,980,591$         1,496,325$           56.96%
 
Expenditures

Benefits 3,605,108$           263,355$              2,275,041$         1,330,067$           63.11%

Other 20,000                  -                        -                     20,000                  0.00%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,625,108$           263,355$              2,275,041$         1,350,067$           62.76%

Revenue Over Expenditures (148,192)               646,878                (294,450)            

 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

EXPENDITURES!

BUDGET! YTD!BUDGET! YTD!
 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

REVENUE!



COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

WORKING CASH FUND
MARCH 2017

Month Year to Date
Budget Actual Actual Remaining YTD %

Revenue

Local 365,133$               9,130$                  71,895$                  293,238$              19.69%

TOTAL REVENUE 365,133$               9,130$                  71,895$                  293,238$              19.69%
 
Expenditures

Inter-Fund Transfer 3,309,000$            -$                      -$                       3,309,000$           0.00%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,309,000$            -$                      -$                       3,309,000$           0.00%

Revenue Over Expenditures (2,943,867)$           9,130$                  71,895$                  

 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

EXPENDITURES!

 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

BUDGET     YTD!

REVENUE!



COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

DEBT SERVICE FUND
MARCH 2017

Month Year to Date
Budget Actual Actual Remaining YTD %

Revenue
Local 3,645,021$           1,474,378$           2,340,004$             1,305,017$                64.20%

TOTAL REVENUE 3,645,021$           1,474,378$           2,340,004$             1,305,017$                64.20%
 
Expenditures

Bond Interest Payment 729,400$              -$                      729,400$                -$                           100.00%

Bond Principal Payment 2,770,000             -                        2,770,000               -                             100.00%

Bank Fees 3,500                    -                        950                         2,550                         27.14%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,502,900$           -$                      3,500,350$             2,550$                       99.93%

Revenue Over Expenditures 142,121                1,474,378             (1,160,346)              

The above Revenue and Expense Budget and YTD figures exclude "Other Financing Sources (Uses)."  

 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

BUDGET    YTD!

EXPENDITURES!

   !

!
!

   !

!
!

 $-   !

 $1,000,000 !

 $2,000,000 !

 $3,000,000 !

 $4,000,000 !

BUDGET    YTD!

REVENUE!



MARCH 2017
INVESTMENT REPORT



&RPPXQLW\�&RQVROLGDWHG�6FKRRO�'LVWULFW���
,QYHVWPHQW�6XPPDU\�5HSRUW

DW�0DUFK���������

$YHUDJH�,QWHUHVW�5DWH�RI�,QYHVWPHQWV�DW�0RQWK�(QG �����

$YHUDJH�'D\V�WR�0DWXULW\�IURP�0RQWK�(QG ��������

,QWHUHVW�5HFHLYHG�<HDU�WR�'DWH ��������

,QYHVWPHQW�7RWDOV�E\�7\SH 2ULJLQDO�&RVW
0DUNHW�9DOXH�DW�
0DUFK���������

&HUWLILFDWHV�RI�'HSRVLW ���������� ����� ����������
&RPPHUFLDO�3DSHU ���������� ����� ����������
*RYHUQPHQW�$JHQFLHV ����������� ������ �����������
7UHDVXULHV ���������� ����� ����������
0RQH\�0DUNHW ����������� ������ ����������

7RWDO�,QYHVWPHQWV ������������ ������� ������������

$FFXPXODWHG�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�DV�RI�)HE��������� ���������

0DUNHW�9DOXDWLRQ�DW�-XQ��������� �������

,QYHVWPHQWV�DV�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�
6WDWHPHQWV�DW�)HE��������� ������������

,QWHUHVW�3HUFHQWDJH�$OORFDWLRQ�E\�)XQG
(GXFDWLRQDO�)XQG ���
2SHUDWLRQV�DQG�0DLQWHQDQFH�)XQG ��
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�)XQG ��
,05)�)XQG ��
%RQG�	�,QWHUHVW ��
&DSLWDO�3URMHFW ��
:RUNLQJ�&DVK�)XQG ���

����



�

,QYHVWPHQW�'HWDLO�0DUFK�����
6HFXULW\�
,GHQWLILHU 7\SH +ROGLQJ

3XUFKDVH�
�6HWWOHPHQW��

'DWH 0DWXULW\�'DWH ,QWHUHVW�5DWH
2ULJLQDO�&RVW�

%DVLV�
$GMXVWHG�&RVW�

%DVLV� $FF�$PRUW 0DUNHW�9DOXH
&XUUHQW�0RQWK

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ���������� 0RQH\�0NW� ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� �����:�*� )10$ ������ ��������� ��������� ������ ���� ���� ���� ����

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� �����<&�� )10$ ������ ��������� ��������� ������ ��������� ��������� ���� ���������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� �����/;$� )10$ ������ ��������� ��������� ������ �������� �������� ���� ��������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� �����-=�� )10$ ������ ��������� ��������� ������ �������� �������� ���� ��������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� �����)7�� )10$ ������ ��������� �������� ������ �������� �������� ���� ��������

7RWDO�$VVHW�%DFNHG�6HFXULWLHV ��������� ��������� ���� ���������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

7RWDO�&'V ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*=8� )10$ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(&16� ))&% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�-9� )+/0& �������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����()9�� ))&% ���������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�3�� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�$3� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ������ ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�-0� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ��������� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�15� )+/% ��������� ���������� ������ ��������� ��������� ���� ���������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�43� )+/% ��������� ���������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�6'� )10$ ��������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*%.� ))&% ��������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ����� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ������*�� )+/% ��������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*��*� )10$ �������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ����� ���������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(&(�� ))&% ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�0*� )10$ ���������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ����� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$��(� )+/% �������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�=1� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������ ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*/)� ))&% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������



�

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*��:� )+/0& �������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�6<� )10$ ��������� ���������� ������ �������� �������� ���� ��������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�-6� )+/% ��������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�/+� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�(*� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$��4� )+/% �������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�%$� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������ ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�=4� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*/8� ))&% ��������� ��������� ������ ��������� ��������� ���� ���������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�4�� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*��1� )+/0& �������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�;�� )10$ ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$��<� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$$0+� )+/% �������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*7$� ))&% �������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�-6� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�=�� )10$ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�)�� )+/0& �������� ���������� ������ ������������ ������������ ������ ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*;$� ))&% ���������� �������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�1*� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�(3� )+/% ���������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ����� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*��9� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�)&� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*;3� ))&% ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*$5&� )+/0& ���������� ���������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$��1� )+/% ��������� ���������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�<.� )+/0& ��������� ���������� ������ ������������ ������������ ����� ������������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*7.� ))&% ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�=7� )+/0& ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�3-� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�+�� )+/% ���������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�8=� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*$'<� )+/0& �������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*93� ))&% ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ������ ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����*�8=� )+/0& ��������� ���������� ������ ������������ ������������ ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$(+�� )+/% ��������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������



�

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����(*:3� ))&% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�**� )+/% ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ����� ����������

1RUWKHUQ�7UXVW����� ����$�=3� )+/% ���������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������
7RWDO�86�7UHDVXU\�$JHQF\�6HFXULWLHV ������������� ������������� ��������� �������������

7RDO�)L[HG�,QFRPH ������������� ������������� ��������� �������������

0DUNHW�9DOXH�ZLWK�00 ������������� ������������� ��������� �������������

30$ ��������� 0RQH\�0NW� ������������� ������������� ���� �������������

30$ &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

30$ &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

30$ &' ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ���� ����������
7RWDO�&'V ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

7RWDO�&'V�	�00 ������������� ������������� ���� �������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU 3)(33 &3 ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ,&(33 &3 ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU -1-33 &3 ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU 05.&33 &3 ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU $33,1& &3 ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU :0733 &3 ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU .233 &3 ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU 06)7 &3 ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU 52&+2/ &3 ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU 63*&3 &3 �������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU :$/733 &3 ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

7RWDO�&RPPHUFLDO�3DSHU ������������ ������������ ���������� ������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������������� 0RQH\�0NW� ��������� ��������� ���� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����.;6�� )+/0& $����� ���������� ��������� ������ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �������/� )+/0& $����� ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �������)� )+/0& $����� ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������'*� )+/0& %����� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������9-� )+/0& %����� ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����/&$� )+/0& &����� ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������



�

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����+�1�� )+/0& (����� ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����/;+1� )+/0& *����� ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����0�=6� )+/0& *����� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����0��.� )+/0& *����� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����0�-.� )+/0& *����� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����0�%�� )+/0& *����� ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����0�15� )+/0& *����� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����.�(� )+/0& *����� ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����0&�9� )+/0& *����� ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����$03� )+/0& *����� ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������ ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����338=� )+/0& -����� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ��������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����36/%� )+/0& -����� ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

7RWDO�*ROG�0RWJDJH�%DFNHG ������������ ������������ ��������� ������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����-)'� )10$ ������ ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����4�6� )10$ ������ ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����'8$� )10$ ������ ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����&0*� )10$ ������ ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����$.�� )10$ ������ ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ��������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����'6+� )10$ ������ ���������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����*.4� )+0$ ������ ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����:�8� )10$ ������ ���������� ��������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU �����.<5� )10$ $&���� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(+%�� )10$ $/���� ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(++%� )10$ $/���� ��������� �������� ������ ��������� ��������� �������� ���������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(.=3� )10$ $/���� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� ��������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(11�� )10$ $/���� ��������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(733� )10$ $/������� ���������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������ ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(5<�� )10$ $/���� ��������� �������� ������ ������������ ������������ �������� ������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(5+%� )10$ $/���� ���������� �������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(5+&� )10$ $/���� ���������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� �������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ����(5�7� )10$ $/���� ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ �������� ������������

7RWDO�0RUWJDJH�%DFNHG� ������������ ������������ ��������� ������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������.�� 7UHDVXU\ ��������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ����� ������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������;1� 7UHDVXU\ �������� ��������� ������ ������������ ������������ ������ ������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������9�� 7UHDVXU\ �������� ���������� ������ ���������� ���������� ������ ����������



�

86�7UHDVXU\�%RQGV�1RWHV�7RWDO ������������ ������������ ������ ������������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������+1� 7UHDVXU\ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ��������� ����������

:LOOLDP�%ODLU ������/$� 7UHDVXU\ ��������� ��������� ������ ���������� ���������� ��������� ����������

8V�7UHDVXU\�7LSV�7RWDO ������������ ������������ ���������� ������������

)L[HG�,QFRPH�7RWDO ������������� ������������� ���������� �������������

7RWDO�6HFXULWLHV ������������� ������������� ���������� �������������

$PHULFDQ�&RPPXQLW\�%DQN�	�7UXVW ;;;;;;;��� 0RQH\�0NW� ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

%02�+DUULV�%DQN ��������� 0RQH\�0NW� ������������ ������������ ���� ������������

+XQWLQJWRQ�1DWLRQDO�%DQN ���������� 0RQH\�0NW� ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

30$ ��������� 0RQH\�0NW� ���� ���� ���� ����

30$ ��������� 0RQH\�0NW� ������ ������ ���� ������

,OOLQRLV�)XQG ��������������� 0RQH\�0NW� ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

0%�)LQDQFLDO�%DQN ���������� 0RQH\�0NW� ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

0RXQW�3URVSHFW�6WDWH�%DQN ��������� 0RQH\�0NW� ���������� ���������� ���� ����������

7RWDO ��������������� ��������������� ����������� ���������������



        ACTIVITY FUND STATEMENTS
MARCH 2017



80L002 4800 Mobile Home Back To School

Current Month Beginning Balance 1,314.96         

Ending Balance 1,314.96         

80 L006 4800 Educational Services Special Needs Trust Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 1,995.33         

Ending Balance 1,995.33         
80L 006 4810 Educational Services Sarbaugh Trust Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 105.05            

Ending Balance 105.05            
80L 063 4800 Gifted and Talented Association

Current Month Beginning Balance 587.71            

Ending Balance 587.71            
80L 121 4800 Brentwood Student Store

Current Month Beginning Balance 366.47            

Ending Balance 366.47            
80L 128 4800 Frost Jan Gram Memorial Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 30.63              

Ending Balance 30.63              
80L 128 4810 Frost Jayleen Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 848.01            

Ending Balance 848.01            
80L 131 4800 John Jay Children's Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 2,485.36         

Ending Balance 2,485.36         
80L 131 4801 John Jay Student Store

Current Month Beginning Balance 5.85                

Ending Balance 5.85                

Detail for the Month of March 2017
Activity Funds Statement



80 L132 4800 Low Student Store

Current Month Beginning Balance 0.99                

Ending Balance 0.99                
80L 133 4800 Ecology Club

Current Month Beginning Balance 413.67            

Ending Balance 413.67            
80L 134 4800 Rupley Trust Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 3,269.76         

Ending Balance 3,269.76         
80L 134 4801 Rupley Patrol

Current Month Beginning Balance 338.04            

Ending Balance 338.04            
80L 134 4802 Rupley Student Council

Current Month Beginning Balance 1,098.61         

Ending Balance 1,098.61         
80L 135 4801 Salt Creek Forum Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 1,621.01         

03/13/17 AP Kalliroe Petrides Student Forum Meeting 161701816 (9.98)               
03/27/17 AP Kalliroe Petrides Student Forum Supplies for 161701816 (10.98)             

Ending Balance 1,600.05         
80L 242 4800 Grove Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 4,331.66         

03/02/17 AP Craig Johnson Game Official 2/4/17 26709 (125.00)           
03/02/17 AP Karim Fuentes Game Official 2/4/17 26708 (125.00)           
03/07/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/07/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/17/17 CR Grove Jr High School Basketball tourney 50909 600.00            
03/21/17 AP Emerson Middle School Reimbursement for over 179353 (240.00)           
03/23/17 AP John Prusko Reimbursement 179444 (19.96)             
03/28/17 AP Prom  Nite Graduation Dance Decorations 179443 (425.67)           
03/28/17 AP Andersons Graduation Dance Decorations 179315 (594.86)           
03/28/17 AP J W Pepper & Son Inc Chorus Music Order - Drama 161701791 (82.74)             
03/29/17 CR Grove Jr High School Drama club - Aladdin tickets 50911 700.00            
03/30/17 AP BMO Financial Group LOUKO, SUSAN, BROADWAY IN 161701744 (210.00)           
03/30/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/30/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 JE Return Check for A Zamarripa (25.00)             
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              



03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 CR Grove Jr High School Drama Club Aladdin tickets 50910 455.00            

Ending Balance 4,438.43         
80L 242 4810 Grove Jack (Hayden) Keen Trust Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 5,730.30         

Ending Balance 5,730.30         
80L 242 4820 Grove Cahill Brown Scholarship

Current Month Beginning Balance 983.20            

Ending Balance 983.20            
80L 243 4800 Holmes Junior High Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 13,551.56       

03/08/17 CR Holmes Jr High School Choir Blizzard fundraiser 55227 68.00              
03/08/17 CR Holmes Jr High School Music field trip 55226 60.00              
03/08/17 CR Holmes Jr High School Choir blizzard sales 50870 177.00            
03/08/17 CR Holmes Jr High School music field trip 50868 75.00              
03/15/17 AP Dairy Queen - Des Plaines Blizzards 12704 (364.50)           
03/16/17 AP All Volleyball, Inc(PO#2431700097) Volleyballs 179309 (173.70)           
03/28/17 AP Mighty Mites Awards Inc(PO#2431700093)Conference Awards 161701806 (95.00)             
03/29/17 CR Holmes Jr High School Choral Fest 50882 120.00            
03/29/17 CR Holmes Jr High School Choral Fest 55237 52.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 AP NASSP/NJHS Natl Asn of National Junior Honor Society 179415 (385.00)           
03/31/17 CR Holmes Jr High Choral fest 50881 962.00            
03/31/17 CR Holmes Jr High Blizzard Fundraiser 50884 35.00              
03/31/17 CR Holmes Jr High Choral fest 55236 40.00              

14,247.36       
80L 243 4810 Grove Cahill Brown Scholarship

Current Month Beginning Balance 5,227.61         

Ending Balance 5,227.61         
80L 245 4800 Friendship Junior High Activity Fund

Current Month Beginning Balance 2,416.03         

03/08/17 CR Friendship Jr High School Variety Show 55228 10.00              
03/08/17 AP Show On The Road DJ for School Dance 161701622 (265.00)           
03/08/17 CR Friendship Jr High School Variety show 42244 277.00            
03/13/17 AP 0402 43921184 8 Sam&apos;s Student Senate Ice Cream 179457 (41.48)             



03/15/17 AP Show On The Road Balance for School Dance 161701635 (150.00)           
03/15/17 AP 6030375100079059 New Student Senate Spaghetti/Taco 12711 (45.38)             
03/16/17 AP Ronald Mcdonald House Student Senate Field Trip 179451 (150.00)           
03/30/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 AP 0402 43921184 8 Sam&apos;s Supplies for Student Senate 179457 (29.80)             
03/31/17 AP Jostens Inc Second Deposit for Yearbooks 179393 (3,520.00)        
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 20.00              
03/31/17 SB Yearbook 25.00              
03/31/17 CR Friendship Jr High School Student senate school dance 42248 660.00            
03/31/17 CR Friendship Jr High School Student senate fundraisers 42249 660.00            

Ending Balance (83.63)             



  
  Board Meeting 05/08/17 

Item No. 6.04  
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

RESOLUTION: HUMAN RESOURCES 
Recommendation 
Approval 
Resolution 
Motion made by ____________________________, seconded by _______________________ that the following                   
resolution be adopted:  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017 the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board                                   
of Education approve the following Human Resources items: 

 
a. Administrator Contracts 
Name Position/Location Salary Effective 
Ashley Robertson Coord SEL & Stu Equity / Admin $76,500 07/01/2017 
Nicole Robinson Principal / Salt Creek $125,000 07/01/2017 
 
b. Administrator Retirement 
Name Position/Location Effective 
MaryBeth Niles Principal / John Jay 06/30/2020 
 
c. Certified Contracts 
Name Position/Location Lane/Step Salary Effective 
Samantha Brea Speech/Lang Path / TBD B/MA Step 2 $50,655 2017-2018 
Rebecca Burright Social Worker / Salt Creek B/MA30 Step 6 $59,499 2017-2018 
Chantal Diaz Psychologist / Jay B/MA30 Step 2 $54,968 2017-2018 
Louise Dutton Psychologist / FJH & GJH B/MA Step 4 $52,701 2017-2018 
Roza Gelman Social Worker / Devonshire B/MA Step 1 $49,662 2017-2018 
 
d. Certified Temporary Contract 
Name Position/Location Salary Effective 
Nicholas Votava Social Work Intern / Forest View (.6 FTE) $5,400 2017-2018 
 
e. Certified Resignations 
Name Position/Location Effective 
Sarah Downing Speech/Lang Path / Devonshire 06/16/2017 
Antonio Illescas Amador Teacher / Grove 06/16/2017 
Angelica Otachel Teacher / Brentwood (LOA) 06/16/2017 
Rima Patel Speech/Lang Path / Grove 06/16/2017 
 
f. ESP Temporary Contract  
Name Position/Location Lane/Step Salary Effective 
Amy Bush (.5) Early Childhood TA / ELC INSTA / Step 1 $17.50 04/10/2017 
 
g. ESP Contract  
Name Position/Location Lane/Step Salary Effective 
Miriam Rodriguez Translator / ILC AA L3 / Step 4 $21.60 04/17/2017 
 

 
 
 



Board Meeting 05/08/17  
Item No. 6.04 

Page 2 
 
h. ESP Resignation 
Name Position/Location Effective 
Cindee Martorano Nurse / Frost 06/12/2017 
 
i. ESP Retirement 
Name Position/Location Effective 
Jane Carstens Office Manager / Devonshire 06/30/2018 
 
j. CAMEO Contract  
Name Position/Location Lane/Step Salary Effective 
Matthew Kellett Night Custodian / Devonshire CLS 1 / Step 1 $16.28 04/17/2017 
 
 
 

 

 



Board Meeting - 05/08/�017 
Item – 6.05 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

RESOLUTION: APPROVAL TO DESTROY 18 MONTH OLD OR OLDER AUDIO RECORDINGS OF 
CLOSED MEETING SESSIONS 

Background The State Law requires the Board of Education to audio-record all Board of Education Closed 
Meeting Sessions.  

Recommendation 
Approval to destroy certain closed meeting session audio files.  
Resolution 
Motion made by                                       , seconded by                                              to adopt the following 
resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education has determined that a              
need no longer exists to keep audio recordings of closed meeting sessions that are 18 months old or                  
older; 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education has previously            
approved written minutes of such closed meeting sessions that meet the standard for written minutes               
required by the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2.06); 

  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of 
Education approves the destruction of closed session audio recordings prepared by the Board 18 months or more 
prior to the date of this meeting and authorizes the Board’s Secretary to destroy such recordings.  

 

 
 







 
 

Board Meeting – 05/08/2017 
Item No. 9.01 (a) 

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
RESOLUTION : 2018/2019 TRADITIONAL CALENDAR  

 
Background 
Members of the Board of Education are being presented with a recommendation for the              
2018/2019 school calendar. This calendar is being submitted to the Superintendent as a             
recommendation for the 2018/2019 school year.  
 
Highlights of the 2018/2019 traditional calendar include:  

 
● an opening day for staff on Monday, August 13, 2018, and students on 

Wednesday, August 15, 2018; 
 
● teacher Institute Day on Tuesday, November 6, 2018; 

 
● winter and spring vacation dates are similar to that of Township High School 

District 214; 
 

● an ending date for students for the 2018/2019 school year will be Thursday, June 6 
2019, which includes five (5) emergency days; 
 

● the calendar is based upon 178 student attendance days; and 
 
● 184 staff work days with a total of 198 calendar days. 

 
 

Recommendation 
Adoption 
 
Resolution 
Motion made by __________________, seconded by _______________________ 
to adopt the following resolution: 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education hereby approves the          
2018/2019 traditional school year calendar with a total of 198 calendar days.  
 
A copy of the adopted calendar will be attached to the approved minutes of the  
May 8, 2017 school board meeting.  

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Meeting – 05/08/2017 
Item No. 9.01 (b.) 

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 

RESOLUTION : HOLIDAYS FOR 2018/2019 FISCAL YEAR  
 

Background 
Each year the Board of Education is asked to adopt a resolution establishing             
official holidays for the next fiscal year. The adopted holiday schedule serves as             
a guide for implementing negotiated contracts with employee groups and          
establishing holidays for twelve-month administrative and non-administrative and        
non-negotiated employees. 
 
Section 24-2 of the School Code provides that a school board is authorized to 
hold school or schedule teachers’ institutes, parent-teacher conferences, or staff 
development activities (including school improvement and inservice training on 
the following legal school holidays).  
 
The Board of Education held a Public Hearing on on April 25, 2017 before 
designating President’s Day for Lincoln’s Birthday holiday and November 21, 
2018 for Veteran’s Day holiday.  
 
Recommendation 
Approval 
 
Resolution 
Motion made by __________________, seconded by 
_______________________ 
to adopt the following resolution: 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on April 25, 2017 to meet the requirement 
in Section 24-2 of the School Code to designate President’s Day for Lincoln’s 
Birthday holiday and November 21, 2018 for Veteran’s Day holiday and there 
were no objections;  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May            
2017, the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education,          
in accordance with the provisions of the Illinois School code, designates           
the following days as holidays for negotiated contracts and         
administrative/non-negotiated employees for the 2018/2019 fiscal year:  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Meeting – 05/08/2017 
Item No. 9.01 (b.) 

Page 2 
 
July 4 Wednesday, July 4, 2018 
Labor Day Monday, September 3, 2018 
Columbus Day Monday October 8, 2018 
Veterans Day Observed Wednesday, November 21, 2018 
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 22, 2018 
Day-After Thanksgiving Friday, November 23, 2018 
Christmas Eve Monday, December 24, 2018 
Christmas Day Tuesday, December 25, 2018 
New Year’s Eve Monday, December 31, 2018 
New Year’s Day Tuesday, January 1, 2019 
Martin Luther King’s Birthday Monday January 21, 2019 
President’s Day Monday, February 18, 2019 
Memorial Day Monday, May 27, 2019 
Floating Holiday (1) 
 

 



      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 
Item No. 9.02  

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION: GROVE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL REQUEST TO ACCEPT 

GRANT AWARD, ILLINOIS READING COUNCIL 
Background 
Grove Junior High School is requesting acceptance of a grant award of $1,500 from the 
Illinois Reading Council’s Literacy Support Grant, 203 Landmark Drive, Suite B, Normal, 
IL 61761. The grant award is to be used to support students in sixth grade English 
Language Arts/Literacy Supports Classrooms.  
 
Recommendation  
Adoption 

 
Resolution 
Motion made by______________, seconded by_____________, to adopt the following 
resolution: 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated              
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Grove Junior High             
School to accept a grant award of $1,500 from the Illinois Reading Council’s Literacy              
Support Grant, 203 Landmark Drive, Suite B, Normal, IL 61761.  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Grove Junior High 
School to accept a grant award of $1,500 from the Illinois Reading Council’s Literacy 
Support Grant, 203 Landmark Drive, Suite B, Normal, IL 61761. The grant award is to 
be used to support students in sixth grade English Language Arts/Literacy Supports 
Classrooms.  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate to the           
donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the Board of             
Education, and that this grant award shall be listed in the “official” minutes of this               
meeting.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  
 



      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 
                               Item No. 9.02 

Page 2 
 
 



      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 
Item No. 9.03  

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION: GROVE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL REQUEST TO ACCEPT 

GRANT AWARD, ECOLAB FOUNDATION ELK GROVE 
VILLAGE CHAPTER 

Background 
Grove Junior High School is requesting acceptance of a grant award of $1,845.24 from 
the Ecolab Foundation Visions For Learning And Educator Grant, Elk Grove Village 
Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk Grove Village, IL 60007. This project will work to 
create an environment in which students’ cultural background knowledge and personal 
experiences are valued and celebrated through the study of native and second 
languages.  
 
Recommendation  
Adoption 

 
Resolution 
Motion made by______________, seconded by_____________, to adopt the following 
resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated              
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Grove Junior High             
School to accept a grant award of $1,845.24 from the Ecolab Foundation Visions For              
Learning And Educator Grant, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk             
Grove Village, IL 60007.  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Grove Junior High 
School to accept a grant award of $1,845.24 from the Ecolab Foundation Visions For 
Learning And Educator Grant, Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk 
Grove Village, IL 60007.  This project will work to create an environment in which 
students’ cultural background knowledge and personal experiences are valued and 
celebrated through the study of native and second languages.  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate to the           
donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the Board of             
Education, and that this grant award shall be listed in the “official” minutes of this               
meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 
      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 

                               Item No. 9.03 
Page 2 

 
 



      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 
Item No. 9.04  

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION: FOREST VIEW REQUEST TO ACCEPT DONATION AWARD, 

PTO 
Background 
Forest View is requesting acceptance of a donation award of $2,000 from the Forest 
View PTO, 1901 Estates Drive, Mount Prospect, IL 60056. This donation award is to be 
used to support the school’s literacy and math programs.  
 
Recommendation  
Adoption 

 
Resolution 
Motion made by______________, seconded by_____________, to adopt the following 
resolution: 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated              
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Forest View to accept a               
donation award of $2,000 from the Forest View PTO, 1901 Estates Drive, Mount             
Prospect, IL 60056. 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Forest View to accept a 
donation award of $2,000 from the Forest View PTO, 1901 Estates Drive, Mount 
Prospect, IL 60056. This donation award is to be used to support the school’s literacy 
and math programs.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate to the           
donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the Board of             
Education, and that this donation shall be listed in the “official” minutes of this meeting.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
  
 
 
 
 



      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 
                               Item No. 9.04 

Page 2 
 
 



      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 
Item No. 9.05  

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION: RIDGE FAMILY CENTER FOR LEARNING REQUEST TO 

ACCEPT GRANT AWARD, ECOLAB FOUNDATION ELK GROVE 
VILLAGE CHAPTER 

Background 
Ridge Family Center For Learning  is requesting acceptance of a grant award of $2,700 
from the Ecolab Foundation Elk Grove Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk 
Grove Village, IL 60007. The grant will help support the school’s SEL family groups by 
providing the funds to assist the program in developing team building and positive 
behaviors.  
 
Recommendation  
Adoption 

 
Resolution 
Motion made by______________, seconded by_____________, to adopt the following 
resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated              
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Ridge Family Center For              
Learning to accept a grant award of $2,700 from the Ecolab Foundation Elk Grove              
Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk Grove Village, IL 60007.  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017 the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education approves the request by Ridge Family Center For 
Learning to accept a grant award of $2,700 from the Ecolab Foundation Elk Grove 
Village Chapter, 1060 E Thorndale Ave., Elk Grove Village, IL 60007.  The grant will 
help support the school’s SEL family groups by providing the funds to assist the 
program in developing team building and positive behaviors.  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Superintendent shall communicate to the           
donors, in writing, expressing the appreciation of the members of the Board of             
Education, and that this grant award shall be listed in the “official” minutes of this               
meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
      Board Meeting– 5/8/17 

                               Item No. 9.05 
Page 2 

 
 





Board Meeting- 05/8/17 
Item No. 10.01  

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
RESOLUTION: NSSEO BUDGET ADOPTION: 2017/18 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
Background 
The NSSEO Governing Board has prepared a proposed budget for 2017/18. This            
budget is the culmination of broad and inclusive discussions over the past several             
months. A directed vote will be taken at the NSSEO Governing Board meeting on May               
31, 2017. Therefore, the School District 59 Board of Education is asked to take action               
on this proposed budget at their regular meeting on May 22, 2017.  
Comparing the 17/18 NSSEO proposed budget to the prior year’s estimated actuals of             
like programs, the budget is set to increase $808,616 for a total of $48,174,158. This               
represents a 1.6% increase over the prior year’s estimated actuals. This expenditure            
budget includes the flow-through of Federal IDEA funds passed along to the            
participating school districts as well as funds used directly by NSSEO to offset their              
operating expenditures. Excluding federal funds the 2017/18 budget reflects a .7%           
increase over the prior year’s estimated actuals. 
District 59’s share of the proposed Education and Building Fund budgets is $4,647,793,             
a 3.2% decrease ($157,790) over the prior year’s estimated actual. The FY16/17 actual             
expenditures are expected to exceed budget by $531,637.  
This budget assumes $1,206,784 in federal IDEA funds distributed directly to District 59             
to be used to offset the cost of NSSEO tuition and $53,537 to offset the cost of the                  
special education Pre-School program.  
Recommendation 
Approval 
 
Resolution 
Motion made by _______________________, seconded by ______________________ 
to adopt the following resolution: 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 22nd day of May, 2017, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education agrees to participate in the            
programs and activities of the Northwest Suburban Special Education         
Organization during the fiscal year 2017/18, approves of the FY 2017/18 budget            
for this organization as presented by the NSSEO Governing Board, and agrees            
to pay the District’s pro-rata share of the organization’s budgeted revenues.  

 
 
 
 



 
Board Meeting- 05/8/17 

Item No. 10.01 
Page 2  

 
 

 



DRAFT                                                                                          Board Meeting-5/8/17 
Item No. 10.02 

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
RESOLUTION: APPROVAL OF SCHOOL PHOTOGRAPHY AND SERVICES 

CONTRACTS FOR JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOLS 
 
Background 
Pursuant to the provisions of P.A. 94 – 0714, all school districts are required to file a 
report regarding vendor contracts and agreements that pertain to goods and services 
that were intended to generate additional revenue and other remunerations for the 
school district in excess of $1,000, such as photographic services. Any such contracts 
executed on or after July 1, 2006 must be approved by the School Board. In addition, 
the 2017/18 state budget document must include a listing of those contracts which 
generated more than $1,000 revenue during the previous fiscal year. 
 
It has been determined that agreements for school photography services for Holmes, 
Grove and Friendship Junior Highs may generate more that $1,000 revenue for the 
District, with the revenue used to offset school site-based expenditures.  The portrait 
agreements for Grove are with Lifetouch; for Holmes with Premier Studio School 
Photography, and Friendship is with Stuart-Rodgers, Ltd.  Copies of these agreements 
have been included as an attachment to this resolution. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Approval 

Resolution 
Motion made by _______________________, seconded by ______________________ 
to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS it is estimated that more than $1,000 may be received in revenue as                           
a result of each of these contracts; and 
 
WHEREAS the purpose of these revenue funds is to offset expenditures incurred                       
by the schools’ site-based budgets;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 22nd day of May, 2017, the Community                         
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves the contractual                   
agreements with Lifetouch National School Studios, Inc. for Grove Junior High,                     
with Premier Studio School Photography for Holmes, and with Stuart-Rodgers,                   
Ltd. for Friendship Junior High. 

 
 
 



 
Board Meeting–5/8/17 

Item No. 10.02 
Page 2 

 

 

























































































Board Meeting – 5/8/17 
 Item No.10.03 

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
 
RESOLUTION: AWARD OF BID FOR SEALCOATING AND RE-STRIPING OF 

MULTIPLE DISTRICT 59 LOCATIONS 
 

BASIC BID INFORMATION 
 

NUMBER OF BIDS ISSUED:  10 
NUMBER OF BIDS RECEIVED: 4 
DATE OF BID OPENING:  April 25, 2017 

 

Background 

 
Community Consolidated School District 59 operates a blacktop maintenance program 
requiring the sealcoating of approximately one-third of the parking lots and playground 
areas be done each year.  This ensures each area receives an application every three 
years. The Call to Bid for this work also includes the re-striping of all district parking 
lots.  This program is designed to prolong the life of the blacktop areas. 
 
This year, asphalt is scheduled to be seal coated and re-striped at Byrd, ELC, Forest 
View, Friendship Junior High, Holmes Junior High, and Rupley.  All remaining school 
sites will have all lines, games arrows, numbers, letters, stop bars, curbs, and handicap 
areas re-painted.  
 
The Call to Bid states that the bidder is required to submit a quote on each project for 
budgetary purposes.  However, the bid also states that it is the intent of the school 
district to award all projects to one bidder.  The total low bid for completing the work 
specified was submitted by Patriot Maintenance, Inc. in the amount of $27,805. The 
bid submitted has been reviewed, references checked, and a discussion with Patriot 
Maintenance confirmed their commitment to completing the project according to the 
required specifications and schedule. 
 
  

Recommendation 

Approval 
 
Resolution 

Motion made by ____________________, seconded by ______________________ to 
adopt the following resolution: 
 

 



Board Meeting – 5/8/17 
Item No. 10.03 

Page 2 
 

WHEREAS  bids were opened on April 25, 2017 for sealcoating and parking lot 
striping at District 59 sites;  
 
WHEREAS  four (4) bids were received with the recommended low bid submitted 
by Patriot Maintenance, Inc., 1405 Washington Blvd, Mundelein, IL  60060; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 22nd day of May                       
2017, the Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District                   
59 approve the contract award for sealcoating and re-striping to Patriot                     
Maintenance, Inc. in the amount of $27,805. 

 

 
 

__________________________ 
President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 

Secretary 



Board of Education and Administrative Offices
2123 S. Arlington Heights Road, Arlington Heights, IL 60005

Bid Tabulation Form
Name of Bid: Sealcoating & Re-Striping   Date:  April 25, 2017

BIDDER CERT
FORM

BID 
BOND

SEALCOATING 
& RE-STRIPING 

TOTAL

RE-STRIPING 
ONLY TOTAL

PROJECT 
TOTAL COMMENTS

Chicagoland Paving Contractors X X $36,825.00 $9,450.00 $46,275.00

Hastings X X $26,834.07 $6,516.65 $33,350.72

Patriot Maintenance X X $23,155.00 $4,650.00 $27,805.00

TAT Enterprises X X $43,392.60 $14,500.00 $57,892.60



Board Meeting – 5/8/17 
 Item No. 10.04  

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
 
RESOLUTION: AWARD OF BID FOR LOCKERS AT HOLMES JUNIOR HIGH 
 

BASIC BID INFORMATION 
 

NUMBER OF BIDS ISSUED:  13 
NUMBER OF BIDS RECEIVED: 2 
DATE OF BID OPENING:  April 28, 2017 

 

Background 

 
A Call to Bid was issued to supply metal lockers for Holmes Junior High.  As estimated 
cost of $36,000 was determined for locker replacement as part of the approved 
2017-2018 Capital improvement projects.  The new student lockers will be installed in 
the hallways and will be replacing existing failing lockers. 
  
Potential bidders had the responsibility to visit the site to verify all measurements.  Bids 
have been evaluated to ensure that they meet specifications.  District 59 maintenance 
staff will be responsible for removing the current lockers and permanently installing the 
new lockers; locker delivery and installation will occur during the 2017 summer 
months. 

 

Sealed bids were received from two (2) vendors and opened  on Friday, April 28, 2017. 
The low bid was submitted by Larson Equipment and Furniture Company.  The bid was 
reviewed to ensure that the product mets specifications.  It is therefore recommended 
to award the bid to Larson Equipment in the amount of $24,875. 

Recommendation 

Approval 
 
Resolution 

Motion made by ____________________, seconded by ______________________ to 
adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS , bids were opened on April 28, 2017 for new lockers at Holmes 
Junior High;  

WHEREAS,  two (2) bids were received, with the qualified low bid meeting 
specifications; 

 



Board Meeting – 5/8/17 
Item No. 10.04 

Page 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED on the 22nd day of May 2017 the 
Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59 
approved the award for lockers to Larson Equipment and Furniture 
Company, 403 South Vermont, Palatine, IL  in the amount of $24,875. 

 

 
 

__________________________ 
President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 

Secretary 



Board of Education and Administrative Offices
2123 S. Arlington Heights Road, Arlington Heights, IL 60005

Bid Tabulation Form
Name of Bid: Holmes Junior High Lockers   Date:  April 28, 2017

BIDDER CERT
FORM PROJECT TOTAL COMMENTS

Carroll Seating X $30,137.50

Larson X $24,875.00



Board Meeting – 5/8/17 
 Item No. 10.05 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
 
RESOLUTION: AWARD OF BID FOR PARKING LOT ASPHALT RESURFACING 

FOR GROVE JUNIOR HIGH AND BRENTWOOD ELEMENTARY 
 

BASIC BID INFORMATION 
 

NUMBER OF BIDS RECEIVED: 11 
DATE OF BID OPENING:  MAY 1, 2017 

 

Background:  Parking lot resurfacing at Brentwood and Grove Junior High were 
included in the 2017-2018 Capital Improvement Projects resolution which was approved 
at the February 27, 2017 Board of Education meeting. Applied Engineering, the 
District’s Civil engineering firm, prepared drawings and bid specifications for the project.  
 
Eleven (11) bids were received, opened, and reviewed on May 1, 2017.  A scope review 
was held with the lowest responsible bidder Abbey Paving, along with Scott Digilio from 
Applied Engineering, and representatives of the District. 
 
  

Recommendation 

Approval 
 
Resolution 

Motion made by ____________________, seconded by ______________________ to 
adopt the following resolution: 
 

 

 
 
 
 



Board Meeting – 5/8/17 
Item No. 10.05 

Page 2 
 

WHEREAS   parking lot resurfacing drawings and specifications were developed 
by Applied Engineering and the District and put out to bid; 

 

WHEREAS   11 bids were received and opened on May 1, 2017 with the qualified 
low bid meeting specifications; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 22nd day of May                       
2017, the Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District                   
59 approve the contract award for parking lot asphalt resurfacing at Grove                       
Junior High and Brentwood Elementary to Abbey Paving and Sealcoating,                   
1949 County Line Road, Aurora, IL 60502 in the amount of $237,500.  

 

 
 

__________________________ 
President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 

Secretary 



Board of Education and Administrative Offices
2123 S. Arlington Heights Road, Arlington Heights, IL 60005

Bid Tabulation Form
Name of Bid: Parking Lot Asphalt Replacement - Grove & Brentwood   Date:  May 1, 2017

BIDDER CERT
FORM

BID 
BOND ADD. 1 GROVE

TOTAL
BRENTWOOD 

TOTAL

DISCOUNT 
WHEN 

AWARDED 
BOTH

TOTAL
BASE BID COMMENTS

Abbey x x x $112,000.00 $128,000.00 -$2,500.00 $237,500.00

Chadwick x x x $118,845.00 $130,860.00 -$3,726.00 $245,979.00

Chicagoland Paving x x x $138,900.00 $161,000.00 -$2,000.00 $297,900.00

Accu-Paving x x x $129,800.00 $137,400.00 -$1,000.00 $266,200.00

Superior Paving x x $172,000.00 $179,500.00 -$7,000.00 $344,500.00

Schroeder Ashpalt Services x x x $132,248.88 $143,704.35 $0.00 $275,953.23

Arrow Road Construction x x x $123,000.00 $129,500.00 -$3,000.00 $249,500.00

Brothers Asphalt Paving x x x $153,414.00 $160,346.00 $0.00 $313,760.00

Maneval Construction x x x $160,000.00 $152,700.00 $0.00 $312,700.00

A-Lamp x x x $129,140.00 $149,895.00 $0.00 $279,035.00

Orange Crush x x x $147,000.00 $146,400.00 -$48,900.00 $244,500.00



 

engineering consultants   |   715 Ridgeview Drive, McHenry, IL 60050 
rtmassociates.com   |   847.578.0200   |   MBE Certified Business 

May 4, 2017 
 
 
Tony Rossi 
Executive Director for Facilities and Operations 
Community Consolidated School District 59 
2123 S. Arlington Heights Road 
Arlington Heights, Illinois 60005 
 
 
Re: Grove Jr. High School - Parking Lot Maintenance Project 

Brentwood Elementary School - Parking Lot Maintenance Project 
  
 
Dear Tony, 
 
Per your request, I have discussed both Grove Jr. High and Brentwood Elementary School parking lot 
maintenance projects with the low bidder, Owen Smith from Abbey Paving Co. Inc. From my 
conversation with Owen, he has a clear understanding of the projects and his bid fee covers the scope 
of work shown on the Civil Engineering Drawings.   
 
Since Abbey Paving has successfully completed previous projects with CCSD 59 and knowing Abbey’s 
good reputation in the paving industry, I have not checked with any of their references.  Due to the 
above information, I recommend that CCSD 59 award the bid to the lowest bidder, Abbey Paving Co., 
Inc.  
 
If you have any questions or need any further information, please do not hesitate to call.  
 
Thank you. 
 
 
Respectfully Yours, 
RTM Engineering Consultants, LLC 
 
 
 
 
Scott DiGilio, P.E. 
Principal 
 
 









 Board Meeting – 5/08/2017 
Item No. 13.0 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
RESOLUTION: CLOSED MEETING 

Background 
Provisions of the Illinois Open Meetings Act (Ill Rev. Stat., Chapter 102, Section 41, et. seq.) stipulate                 
that all or part of a meeting may be closed to the public upon a majority vote of a quorum taken in any                       
properly called open meeting. The minutes shall disclose the vote of each member on the question of                 
entering closed session and shall state the specific statutory exception authorizing the closing of the               
meeting. A single vote may authorize a series of closed meetings on the same topic within a                 
three-month period. Minutes shall be kept of all closed sessions and shall record the date, time, place of                  
meeting, members present and absent, a summary of discussions of all matters proposed, discussed or               
decided, and a record of any votes taken.  No final action may be taken in closed session.  
Resolution 
Time __________________ 
 
Motion made by _____________________ , seconded by ____________________  to adopt the following 
resolution: 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May 2017, the Community Consolidated School District 59 
Board of Education recess in a closed meeting for discussion of “the appointment, employment, 
compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body”,  
-5ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) of the Open Meetings Act.   

 
Immediately following the Closed Session, the Board of Education will reconvene in Open 
Session and may take action deemed necessary as a result of the Closed Session discussions.

 





 Board Meeting –   05/08/2017 
Item-No. 14.0 

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION: RECONVENE MEETING 
 
Time: ____________________ 
 

 
Resolution 
Motion made by _____________________, seconded by _____________________ to adopt 
the following resolution: 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May 2017, the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education meeting is reconvened.  

 





 Board Meeting – 05/08/17 
Item No.- 15.0 

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION : ADJOURN THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

 
 

Time: ______________________ 
 
 
______________________ made a motion, seconded by ____________________ to adopt the 
following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of May, 2017, the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education meeting is adjourned. 

 

 


	1.0 Agenda 2017-05-08BoardMtgAgenda
	Roll Call
	2.0 RollCall
	consent agenda
	6.0 Res-ConsentAgenda.docx
	6.01 Res-Minutes-PriorMtgs.docx
	6.01a merged
	6.01a 2017-04-10OfficialBoardMinutes 
	6.01ab April 10 2017 Krisnky presentation

	6.01c merged
	6.01c 2017-04-25OfficialBoardMinutes (2)
	Birth through Eight- BOE Presentations 4.25.17

	6.02Res-Disbursements.docx
	6.03 Res-FinancialRpts.docx
	6.03a 2017-03-31 Financial 
	6.04 2017.05.08HRResolution
	6.05 Res-Verbatimrecordings.docx
	Special Interest
	Action Items
	9.01 a&b ResTraditionalCalendarHolidays2018-19 (1)
	9.02 GroveJuniorHighSchoolRequestToAcceptGrantAwardIllinoisReadingCouncilLiterarySupportGrantBromleyRebecca5.8.17
	9.03GroveJuniorHighSchoolRequestToAcceptGrantAwardEcolabFoundation5.8.17
	9.04ForestViewRequestToAcceptDonationPTOWeickertMeg5.8.17
	9.05RidgeFamilyCenterForLearningRequestToAcceptGrantAwardEcolabFoundation5.8.17
	Discussion Items
	10.01NSSEOBudgetAdoption201718SchoolYear5.8.17
	10.02 ApprovalOfSchoolPhotographyAndServicesContractsForJuniorHighSchools5.8.17
	10.02(a) Grove%2FHolmes%2FFriendship Contracts 2017-18 for 5.8.17
	10.03 RES-SEALCOATRE-STRIPEAWARD2017-2018.doc
	10.03a Tabulation - Sealcoating & Re-striping
	10.04 RES-HOLMESLOCKERSAWARD2017-2018.doc (1)
	10.04a Tabulation - Lockers 0417
	10.05 RES-PARKINGLOTASPHALTREPLACEMENTGROVEBRENTWOODAWARD2017-2018.doc
	10.05a Tabulation - Parking Lot Asphalt Replacement 0517
	10.05b Grove & Brentwood - Low Bidder Recommendation
	New Continuing Business
	Reports of the Superintendent's Team
	Closed Session 
	13.0Res-closedsession.docx
	Reconvene
	14.0Res-reconvene.docx
	Adjourn
	15.0Res-adjourn.docx (2)

